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VISION &

To become our customers’ preferred strategic partner in the
acoustics and electronics industries.

RATEERLETREEF BENRBEIES(EKE -

MISSION {#7p

Through advancements in innovative technologies, we strive to

provide value-added and distinct products to our customers.

A RRIFTRI - B REPRESIEE SERENER -

VALUES BEEE

We, as a partner, abide by our commitment to our customers.
We, as an innovator, relentlessly pursue excellence.

We, as a team, cross the finish line together.

We, as a corporate citizen, devote ourselves to the prosperity of
our society.

EERE - (FFA  HEAIR - BREY  BEGIE  EKERE
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Financial Highlights
HEEE

For the year ended 31 March HE3A318 ILFE

2019 2018 Change 21t
Operating results REEE
Gross profit margin (%) T =& (%) 18.3 202 -1.9pts B
Operating profit margin (%) A5 ) 7 2 (%) 6.0 54 0.6 pts AN
Net profit margin (%) 4B 2R (%) 2.9 25  04pts ADE
Return on equity holders (%) A AR R (%) 6.0 44  16pts AN
Financial position B AR R
Total assets (HK$'000) wEE(FET) 1,040,656 1,062,223 -2.0%
Cash and bank deposits (HK$'000) Re RIRTTHFER(FET) 263,137 408,633 -35.6%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) fe iR (F757T) 673,093 690,120 -2.5%
Financial ratio Bt =
Current ratio (Times) BN R (1) 2.9 2.9 -
Quick ratio (Times) SREHLL R (1) 1.9 2.1 -9.5%
Turnover ratio AL =R
Inventory turnover (days) GFERAE(H) 87 74 17.6%
Debtors turnover (days) JEYBREREE(R) 63 66 -4.5%
Creditors turnover (days) JETERREE(R) 60 75 -20.0%
Operating cycle (days) EBH(R) 90 65 38.5%
Dividends per share (HK cents) SRR E CGEAL) 9.0 9.0 -
Interim A EA 4.0 4.0 -
Final R EA 5.0 5.0 -
Revenue A Shareholders’ equity B R &% Dividends per share &% i 2.
HK$ million & &4 7T HK$ million B &#&7T HK cent 71l
1800 850 12
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The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position of Fujikon Industrial
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries:

¢
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Financial Summary

HERE

AT RELREXEREARAR(ARR]) REKE
RAZEATEARBERMGEPHRARIIRE ¢

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income SETEHKER
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 1,411,795 1,226,121 1,155,334 1,160,220 1,264,135
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,154,092)  (978,377)  (968,815)  (959,963) (1,082,479)
Gross profit EF 257,703 247,744 186,519 200,257 181,656
Other gains/(losses) — net Hibleas /(E518) — 558 8,046 (15,973) 12,465 3,221 15,295
Distribution and selling expenses 8 R EHE T (14,293) (12,903) (14,718) (14,409) (22,753)
General and administrative expenses — & & 7T 3% Hi (166,569)  (154,662)  (153,286)  (164,354)  (157,746)
(Provision)/reversal of provision for  FEUL S FRIE (B4 ),/
impairment of trade receivables (o] 2% (871) 2,105 (2,064) (308) (1,106)
Operating profit 5 5 R 84,016 66,311 28,916 24,407 15,346
Finance income — net BB WA — 5 4,572 3,278 2,193 5,983 9,473
Profit before income tax & BT 15 %5 Al i A1) 88,588 69,589 31,109 30,390 24,819
Income tax expenses Fri5 s i (19,620) (15,310) (6,808) (5,424) (4,345)
Profit for the year F N5 A 68,968 54,279 24,301 24,966 20,474
Attributable to: BB
Equity holders of the Company KANRIIRIEREAF A 40,490 30,518 2,770 11,259 12,602
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR RS 28,478 23,761 21,531 13,707 7,872
68,968 54,279 24,301 24,966 20,474
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Financial Summary
MBRE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position SERBRRR
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRG 142,442 137,898 130,381 155,771 179,369
Investment properties B 1,400 1,200 1,050 3,530 3,710
Land use rights =+t {5 A A 3,879 4,316 4,047 4,478 4,895
Non-current deposits and other EmBiE e REM
assets BE 4,812 2,758 3,713 1,930 7,303
Available-for-sale financial assets At &85 E&E - 3,928 4116 6,926 7,160
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive W B EE
income 3,979 - - - -
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTISTEE 6,644 5,836 4,786 3,904 2,639
Total non-current assets EmBEEMLE 163,156 155,936 148,093 176,539 205,076
Current assets MENEE
Inventories e 313,876 237,111 158,697 169,959 156,028
Trade receivables FEUE 5K 258,226 228,332 214,005 217,969 234,297
Other receivables H b fE N IA 39,149 30,005 24,444 12,629 47,369
Financial assets at fair value RAFEFAER
through profit or loss MBS & E 2,109 2,145 2,938 2,523 3,700
Current income tax recoverable A Y B & BART 15 F1 1,003 61 710 251 7,690
Cash and cash equivalents WeENIRESZEEY 263,137 408,633 455,945 415,877 409,325
Total current assets TMEVEEBE 877,500 906,287 856,739 819,208 858,409
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade payables FERTER 173,121 205,668 194,740 140,904 159,970
Contract liabilities, accruals and A% & & « EHER KL
other payables HMERFIR 125,690 100,078 78,931 74,189 93,103
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA - - 3,870 8,372 4,034
Current income tax liabilities EHFREHAE 4,805 10,044 14,210 17,625 16,701
Total current liabilities mEAERE 303,616 315,790 291,751 241,090 273,808
_Netcurrentassets ~ ABEEFE 573,884 590,497 564,988 ! 578,118 ! 584,601
Total assets less current liabilities EEERTEAE 737,040 746,433 713,081 754,657 789,677
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
___ Deferred income tax liabilities EXmEHam [ 2184 1491 700 1195 806
Net assets BEFE 734,856 744,942 712,381 753,462 788,871

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 4 Annual Report 2018/2019
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Financial Summary
MBEmE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continved) #REBIEIRNT (&)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity T
Capital and reserves attributable to 3B 2N~ &) I
the Company's equity holders BEAZBRARFE

Share capital f& s 42,584 42,107 42,026 42,019 41,986
Other reserves HAbE 171,771 191,739 156,810 182,890 206,604
Retained earnings 1REB % 7|
— Proposed dividends —BERE 21,292 21,053 29,418 21,010 20,993
— Others —Hi 437,446 435,221 436,522 467,312 485,350

673,093 690,120 664,776 713,231 754,933

Non-controlling interests FESESI M R 61,763 54,822 47,605 40,231 33,938
Total equity A 734,856 744,942 712,381 753,462 788,871
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Chairman’s Statement

FRBE

To our shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“Fujikon” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2019.

Over the past year, we witnessed the ongoing and rapid development of
the electro-acoustic industry, as well as increasingly unpredictable market
conditions. This confluence of events reminds us of the importance of
cherishing and leveraging our greatest strength, which is our unflagging
passion. This passion has been the catalyst for our many ground-breaking
technological triumphs, which in turn have provided the stepping stones
for our ascendancy to top market position. Our rise, which stretches nearly
four decades, has both highlighted our increasingly prominent role in the
electro-acoustic industry, as well as the step changes that the industry has
undergone, as exemplified by the rise and fall of the radio, cassette deck,
CD and MP3 players, and now the pre-eminence of mobile devices. As one
trend made way for another, we were driven by our passion and have risen
to overcome each new challenge — not just to stay abreast of developments,
but to be at the vanguard of change.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 6

Johnny Yeung £ E#
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

FERITEABH

HBRMURKRER :
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REEMKE  FEEEEABRRE  BHETTE
BEMA - HEAWTH - AREEBTEZEE)
| RMEEASERER  BETETEHEE
EmPBETHRA RHEEH RAHIH -
EMPIERZRZ SN BB RE - KR BERER
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Our passion has now led us to an important juncture in our development: the
repositioning of the Group as a go-to manufacturer of advanced, miniaturised
and customised electro-acoustic products. Towards this end, we welcomed
new customers who value our strengths and have like-minded objectives,
while at the same time we bid farewell to those that did not align with our
ambition or lack product differentiation. We trust that our focus on a select
group of leading brands that possess high-growth potential will complement
our repositioning goal, and that the resultant bonds will enable us to readily
overcome challenges arising from our repositioning strategy.

With an objective to become a preferred manufacturing partner we have
reformed our supply chain department and engaged leading suppliers
that provide cost-competitive and high-quality materials. This will help to
alleviate associated cost pressure and shortages, ensure supply stability,
meet demand upticks and address tight delivery timelines, as well as raise
production efficiency. Since labour is an ongoing concern that directly
impacts production, here we have also taken decisive action to address this
matter. We launched programmes and incentives that go above and beyond
industry norms, and made Fujikon a preferred place to work.

Going forward, we will focus on strengthening partnerships with our key
customers co-developing and sharing technologies, as well as charting
product roadmaps that lead to mutually sustainable development.
To complement such efforts, we will leverage our ongoing pursuit
of technological innovation. Fujkon is both a veteran and pioneer of
Bluetooth, True Wireless, Active Noise Cancellation (“ANC") and Hybrid
ANC technologies, with currently over 80% of our headset and headphone
products now sold featuring these technologies. Therefore, we are confident
that we possess the prowess, expertise and experience to introduce still
more breakthroughs in the years ahead. We are already at the forefront
of incorporating True Wireless and ANC technologies in size-restrictive
devices — an innovation that combines world-class design, engineering and
manufacturing excellence.

Even though macroeconomic uncertainties have increased, due in large
part to the Sino-US trade war, we also recognise that challenges and
opportunities coexist during such times. Our objective is to fully leverage our
competitive advantages to overcome difficulties while capitalise on prospects
for growth. With our repositioning strategy in progress, which includes
the bolstering of key facets of operation, | trust that Fujikon will not only
prevail over adversity, but also deliver encouraging results as a prominent
technology-based company — a company that is driven by passion.

£ 20182019  /

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dividends

The Board have recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents
per ordinary share. Together with an interim dividend of HK4.0 cents per
share already paid, a total payout of HK9.0 cents per ordinary share will be
distributed to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my gratitude to the
management team for their hard work and unwavering commitment to
the betterment of the Group over the past year. Also, | would like to
thank the entire Fujikon family for their diligence which has facilitated
the Group’s encouraging performance. Furthermore, | wish to express my
sincere gratitude to our many business partners and shareholders for their
unequivocal commitment and support.

Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 19 June 2019

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 8
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business review

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$1,411.8 million (2018: HK$1,226.1 million), representing a year-on-
year increase of 15.1%. The increase in revenue was principally attributed
to greater sales from the headsets and headphones operation. Gross profit
rose to HK$257.7 million (2018: HK$247.7 million) despite a decrease
in handling income which included the sales of moulds and service fees.
Profit attributable to equity holders amounted to HK$40.5 million (2018:
HK$30.5 million), representing a year-on-year increases of 32.7%. The rise in
profitability, which was despite an appreciable increase in overall staff costs,
in particular direct labour costs, was due in part to the depreciation of the
Renminbi which led to a net exchange gain. Basic earnings per share were
HK9.6 cents (2018: HK7.3 cents).

Business segment analysis

Headsets and Headphones

The headsets and headphones business continued to serve as the primary
revenue source of the Group during the review year, contributing HK$1,077.4
million (2018: HK$914.5 million) in segmental revenue, which represented
a year-on-year increase of 17.8%, and accounted for 76.3% of the Group’s
total revenue. The key driver of such growth has been the Group's
Bluetooth-enabled solutions which expedited the product launches of its
key clients. Through continuous efforts towards product development, with
particular focus on sophisticated products requiring advanced technologies,
over 80% of products sold by Fujikon now feature Bluetooth and/or active
noise cancellation (“ANC") solutions. Ongoing efforts to restructure the
client portfolio has also facilitated the rise in revenue. However, because
of a labour shortage during the review year, the Company had to hire
contract labour which is inherently less cost effective, hence labour cost
appreciably increased. Moreover, while Fujikon was able to secure two new
clients with high growth potential during the review year, production of
their respective products was subject to further ramp up. The rise in labour
cost and relatively lower production efficiency consequently impacted on
the profitability of the headsets and headphones segment, as reflected by
a profit of HK$21.3 million (2018: HK$27.1 million) recorded for the review
year.

=L L

9

3% 2018/2019

CEEAERER AR

B O

B E019F3A3B EFE A5 B &G KA
1,411,800,0007% 7T (2018 : 1,226,100,000/8 JT ) * ¥ =
FEREEF151% c WMARKEEZHRE KT RS
EEMEBNIEEERME - HARBRA(BIEHES
KA RRBEE)EFTE - EF1)IEKZE257,700,00078
7£(2018 : 247,700,000 70 ) © BT 5B A FEAG & F1)3E
40,500,000 70 (2018 : 30,500,00078 7T ) + #8 2= 4 [7] #
EA327% BEBEBEINABEEN LERE
BETIRA  BREERFDER LA FoRAZ
HRARBRESYHSEL NS FEME - GRE
RNEFA9.6710 (2018 = 7.37ML) ©

L
MURERRTEER

REBEEFERN BRERESLEREBEERAE
BrEZ AR - 8615 5 34 A1,077,400,00075 7T
(2018 : 914,500,000 70) * FLLIGR17.8% - A EE
BUTAMT6.3% - BRI R T B ALBEME T4
fRR T RATHES) - WA RENEEZP IR
LHER BRAYERAZNBERA  LEZIRN
EREERMMBEEER ST B RIATES0% L
WEMIEBET R SEEHAEER(EBHXERE])
FERFR - REBTHBHATAHES @ HBILTMEFI
A - A AREEFEANSTER  RART
BTREAKNABISRENSGOLE T WS THAEE
e AN BMEREBEFE B FIEMAHE
EBENBRANTES  BRESAEMNEERFE
— BRI BIRAENMEETRENEESZTE
TEHRERESEFRYHOEF - REREFEHRS
Y& F) £21,300,0007% 75 (2018 : 27,100,000 7 ) °

EERERAF



Ty

y
sl

[Eeery

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Business segment analysis (Continued)
Accessories and Components

The accessories and components operation has continued to deliver
encouraging performance metrics, including segmental revenue of HK$334.4
million (2018: HK$311.6 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 7.3%,
thus accounting for 23.7% of the Group's total revenue. Segmental profit
also increased, topping HK$62.6 million (2018: HK$61.0 million) for the year
ended 31 March 2019, with the packaging business again credited for the
uptick. Apart from the financial contributions, the segment plays a crucial
role in enabling the Group to realise its vertical integration strategy, which
in turn ensures Fujikon possesses competitive advantages in a challenging
market.

Prospects

The new financial year looks set to remain testing, as subsequent to
the review year, trade tensions between China and the US have further
heightened with the latter raising tariffs on Chinese goods worth US$200
billion from 10% to 25% as of 10 May 2019. The Trump administration is
also considering extending tariffs to the remaining US$300 billion or so in
Chinese imports that have not been targeted, which includes smartphones
and other electronics. A public hearing is expected to take place in June, and
if negotiations between the two parties fail, the tariffs could be implemented
by July 2019. Given that approximately 23% of Fujikon's revenue was derived
from the US market during the review year, the proposed tariffs might
potentially impact the Group. Such impact cannot be accurately assessed at
this time, since the ramifications of the Sino-US trade war, which involves
the two largest economies in the world, remain unknown, particularly as it
pertains to the global economy. Regardless, Fujikon will devise contingency
plans, including the possible recruitment of offshore manufacturing partners.
Moreover, it will closely monitor market developments and take appropriate
and measured action in a timely manner.

In the face of potential market volatility, Fujikon will continue to fortify
its business foundation as well as capitalise on its engineering and
manufacturing capabilities to strengthen its stature as a preferred one-stop
ODM/JDM services provider. Furthermore, the Group will refine its customer
portfolio, going beyond reinforcing ties with selected existing customers.
Specifically, it will focus on securing new customers that are top-tier
industry players, and which possess high growth potential as well as require
miniaturised, complex and customised electro-acoustic products in significant
quantities.

10

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

D

XKoo (E)
BEHREH

RHEMSHEBRNSTARRBEEAN  BEESS
EB Y A334,400,0007 7T(2018 : 311,600,000 JT ) °
F L R7.3%  hAREE LU AM23.7% - o3
FIMEIRIEE  HE19F3A3MBIEFEEMNSE
62,600,0007% 7T (2018 : 61,000,000/ 7T ) + Hepm 2
BB RINAALE - BREIEERIN - Z D B IR ERER
SEEREEEARBAAESEEAR  HMBR
ErmRrEmkENTISPHEREED -

R

BOEFEEZ  FOMRFELNEABREERE -
ZEHBRBPLE—TAL - BHE2019F58108 + =
B ¥ E 52,0002 2 T B o S U 9 BA R FR10% £ 3R
F25% o TMEML - FEAL KRN INES B¥ 2 AT K7
A B H #2493,00018 £ 70 4 B 85 2 7 ah IR
B ERREEEFRIEMETER BHAAHG
R BRITARBEES  WHREEFAHBER - EH
HR2019F7 A THFEE - EREEFERNE LR
#23% MW AR B ERTS - MINBHERTEeY
AEEEAVE HARPEESFEESHRERON
B EeE  HPENATN LERBTRREE
WMEBYEENERERTE - BEOL  EXE8
HIEEZEE  BIETEREREEERMY - i
ELEBRUBEIMBER 7AW ERRIUE
B17H) -

EAHEENTEEE  Srtal TEHEEEBER -
FERETRELEE HANEHE —3500DM/IDMAR
BrEEEEm - N AEEBELCEFA
G MEEBAREREFNBE - BEEHME - A5E
BEEBTABSERE N YAHMAL  BHER
EHNEBERBRERTKNERNERNES -

Annual Report 2018/2019



Prospects (Continued)

As both a veteran and pioneer of Bluetooth, True Wireless, ANC and Hybrid
ANC technologies in electro-acoustic products, the Group will further bolster
its leading position in these advanced technologies. Already, it is on the
brink of another significant milestone — the miniaturisation and integration of
True Wireless and ANC technologies to accommodate size-restrictive devices.
As this latest breakthrough enters the market, along with other products in
the pipeline, the Group will ensure that its manufacturing expertise will have
a complementary role so as to drive growth of the headsets and headphones
business. The Group's engineering expertise, technological advancement as
well as manufacturing capabilities will allow it to differentiate itself from
other industry players, and more importantly, increase its bargaining power
under an adverse market. Such attributes will also attract more top-tier
brands seeking sophisticated products and mass production capabilities.

To address both current and future production requirements, Fujikon will
continue to invest in IT systems, semi-automation and high-precision
equipment, which deliver the benefits of greater production volume,
efficiency and cost effectiveness. Moreover, the management has been
prudently restructuring the Group's supply chain. As a consequence, the
Group has recently secured suppliers that are capable of providing a stable
source of higher quality materials at lower costs. This will not only result in
greater efficiency in procurement and production, but also assure adequate
raw material supplies, hence mitigate the effects of material shortages.

Yet another proactive step taken by the Group involves human resource
management. Given the persistent challenge posed by an industry-wide
labour shortage, Fujikon has been continuously improving employment
conditions and welfare benefits, going beyond the industry norm. Various
incentives, appealing remuneration packages, and activities and initiatives
aimed at raising job satisfaction as well as personal fulfilment have been
introduced. Fujikon's reputation for being a preferred workplace has
consequently been enhanced even further.

In the final analysis, only the most competitive companies will be able to
adapt to market conditions, whether favourable or difficult. Fujikon will be
committed to ensuring that it is such a company, so as to both facilitate its
long-term growth and create value for its shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRE DN

Financial review

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained at a strong financial position. Net current assets
as at 31 March 2019 amounted to approximately HK$573.9 million (2018:
HK$590.5 million). The Group's current and quick ratios were approximately
2.9 times (2018: 2.9 times) and 1.9 times (2018: 2.1 times), respectively.

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$263.1 million
as at 31 March 2019, representing a decrease of approximately 35.6%
against approximately HK$408.6 million as at 31 March 2018. Approximately
61.7%, 32.8% and 3.3% of the total cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars respectively,
and the remainders were in other currencies. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group had aggregated banking facilities of approximately HK$160.6 million
(2018: HK$160.6 million) for loans and trade financing, which were fully
available for use.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and China with most transactions
settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group is mainly
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate.

During the year, the Group had recorded a net foreign exchange gain of
approximately HK$7.1 million mainly due to the depreciation of Renminbi,
while a net foreign exchange loss of approximately HK$16.4 million was
recorded in last year.

The recent fluctuation of Renminbi directly affected our operating costs.
The Group will continuously monitor and enter foreign exchange forward
contracts where appropriate.
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Financial review (continued)

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2019, the Group employed a total of approximately
4,500 (2018: 4,100) employees. The staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) accounted for approximately HK$397.8 million during the year
(2018: HK$340.2 million).

The Group has developed its human resources policies and procedures based
on performance and merit. Employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of its salary and bonus system.
Discretionary bonus is linked to the profit performance of the Group as well
as individual performance. Benefits include staff accommodation, medical
schemes, share option scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund for employees in
Hong Kong and state-sponsored retirement plans for employees in China.
The Group has also developed training programs to its management and
employees to ensure they are properly trained.

Financial Guarantee

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had provided corporate guarantees of
approximately HK$155.7 million (2018: HK$155.7 million) to secure banking
facilities of its subsidiaries. No facilities were utilised by the subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2019 and 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREREREE

Executive Director

Mr. YEUNG Chi Hung, Johnny, M.H., aged 74, is a co-founder of the
Group. He has been the Chairman and the executive Director since 2000 and
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 October 2011.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group. He is instrumental in the formulation and
implementation of the business policies of the Group. Mr. Yeung was elected
the Honorary Fellowship 2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries, Directors of The Year Awards 2007 (executive Director):
Listed Companies (SEHK — Non Hang Seng Index Constituents) by The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. In 2014, he was awarded the University Fellow
of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, re-elected the Industrial Fellow of
Warwick University and the Medal of Honour (“M. H.") at the Seventeenth
Anniversary of the Establishment of the HKSAR. Mr. Yeung has over 50 years
of experience in the electronics and acoustics industry and he was elected
the Outstanding Achievement Award of Hong Kong Electronics Industry
Council in April 2018. In addition, Mr. Yeung is the Executive Committee
Member of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the
President of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry and Commerce Association,
the Member of Innovation and Technology Training Board of the Vocational
Training Council, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Electronics Industries
Association and the Honorary Chairman & the Vice Chairman of Dongguan
Electronics Industries Association, the Deputy Supervisor and the President
of Humen Branch of Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment respectively and also the Trustee of Bright Future Charitable
Foundation. Mr. Yeung is the father of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben, the
executive Director of the Company.

Mr. YUEN Yee Sai, Simon, aged 77, is a co-founder of the Group. He has
been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director since 2000. Mr.
Yuen is responsible for the overall strategic planning of production and
operation related affairs of the Group. He was elected the Associateship
2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr.
Yuen has over 50 years of experience in the electronics industry and has
in depth knowledge of trading in the PRC. In addition, he is the Honorary
Citizen of Dongguan City and Humen Town. Mr. Yuen is the father of Mr.
Yuen Chi King, Wyman, the executive Director of the Company.

Mr. CHOW Man Yan, Michael, aged 70, is a co-founder of the Group. He
has been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director since 2000.
He is responsible for the overall strategic planning of related affairs of the
Group. Mr. Chow was elected the Associateship 2004 by The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and the Distinguished Service
for Community Building of the Secretary for Home Affairs’ Commendation
Scheme in the year of 2015-2016. He has over 50 years of experience in
the electronics and acoustics industry, especially in production and material
management and inventory control. Mr. Chow is the brother of Ms. Chow Lai
Fung, the executive Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. YUEN Chi King, Wyman, aged 44, is an executive Director of the Group.
Mr. Yuen joined the Group in August 2006 and is responsible for overseeing
the implementation of corporate strategy and the financial functions of the
Group. Mr. Yuen graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada with a
Bachelor degree of Commerce and from Saint Louis University, United States
of America with a Master degree of Finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yuen has worked for a few regional financial securities institutions and was
responsible for the provision of corporate finance advisory services. Mr. Yuen
has more than 10 years of experience in financial securities industry and he
is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Yuen is the son of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, the Joint Deputy Chairman of
the Company.

Mr. YEUNG Siu Chung, Ben, aged 43, is an executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer of the Group. In November 2002, Mr. Yeung joined Fujikon
Industrial Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, in which he served in
numerous sales and marketing and project management positions for about
3 years. Mr. Yeung re-joined the Group as an executive Director in August
2007 and is responsible for overseeing the business development functions
and implementing the corporate strategy of the Group, and committed
to modernise the company’s management system. He holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from Yale University in the United States
of America and a Bachelor of Science degree in International Business
from Pepperdine University in the United States of America. Mr. Yeung has
more than 10 years of working experience in an engineering and marketing
capacity. Mr. Yeung was elected 2013 Young Industrialist Awards of Hong
Kong by Federation of Hong Kong Industries and awarded the Most Valuable
Cl0 by BT Media/CSDN in 2014. In addition, Mr. Yeung is actively engaged
in different non-governmental organisations. He is a member of the National
Committee of CPPCC of Sihui County, a member of Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council, a member of the Entrepreneurs’
Organization (EO), a member of the Youth Committee of Beijing Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association (Hong Kong), a member of the Youth Officer
of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry & Commerce Association, a member of
the Young Executive Council of Federation of Hong Kong Industries and the
Current Advisor of the Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. He is the son of Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, who is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

Ms. CHOW Lai Fung, aged 55, is an executive Director of the Group. Ms.
Chow joined the Group in March 2001 and was appointed as executive
Director on 1 August 2007. She is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Group. She graduated from the University of Missouri-
Kansas City, United States of America with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Accounting. She has over 20 years of experience in management, accounting
and finance. Ms. Chow is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She is the sister of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, the
Joint Deputy Chairman of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Independent non-executive Director

Dr. CHUNG Chi Ping, Roy, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company on 1 April
2014,

Dr. Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom and a Doctor of Business Administration Degree
from City University of Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor
by the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in December 2015. Dr. Chung
was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration by the Lingnan
University in 2015, an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration by the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and an Honorary Doctorate Degree
by the University of Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia in 2006. He was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) Medal and the Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) Medal by The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“The Government of the HKSAR") on 30 June 2017 and 1 July
2011 respectively. Dr. Chung was appointed as Justice of Peace by The
Government of the HKSAR on 1 July 2005. He won the Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Award in 1997 and was further awarded the Industrialist of the
Year in November 2014.

Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement of industry. He was the
Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July 2011 to
July 2013 and has been the Honorary President of the Federation since 5
July 2013. In addition, Dr. Chung has been appointed as the Chairman of
Vocational Training Council since 1 January 2018 and he holds positions on
a number of The Government of the HKSAR advisory committees. Dr. Chung
is also an active member of many social committees and associations. Dr.
Chung is the Founder and Chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation,
and whereby Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, executive Director of the
Company, is one of the trustees.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and non-executive director of Techtronic Industries
Company Limited (stock code: 669), a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of TK
Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283) and Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 345), both companies are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHE Wai Hang, Allen, aged 51, had been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company for 4 years since March 2000. In June 2005, Mr.
Che re-joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from
The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Che was admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1993 and also became as a member of The
Law Society of Hong Kong in the same year. Mr. Che has been practicing as
a solicitor in Hong Kong over 20 years and is currently a partner of Wong,
Hui & Co., Solicitors.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Director (Continued)

Mr. LEE Yiu Pun, aged 57, has been an independent non-executive Director
since June 2005. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor of commerce degree majoring in
accounting and marketing from the University of Calgary, Canada. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lee worked as the group financial controller of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings
Limited from 1994 to 1999, the financial controller of Magician Industries
(Holdings) Limited from 1999 to 2000, and deputy finance director of
Henderson China Holdings Limited from 2000 to 2001, all of which are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee is currently the vice president of
finance of a private group of companies.

Senior Management
Mr. MAN Yu Ming, aged 79, is the Managing Director of Fujikon Packing
Material Company Limited. He joined the Group in July 1987.

Mr. CHEUNG Ying Chun, aged 66, is the Managing Director of Fujikon
Precision Metal Products Limited. He joined the Group in September 1988.

Mr. LAM Man Tai, Vincent, aged 52, is the Executive Vice President of

Operation of Fujikon Industrial Company Limited. He joined the Group in
March 2012.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

The directors (the “Directors”) of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) have the pleasure of presenting the annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Principal activities and segment analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by segment
information is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 6 to 13 of this annual report.

A summary of the key performance indicators of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Financial Highlights” on page 2 of this annual report. Save
as (i) the Market Misconduct Tribunal’s order to the Company as set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” under the paragraph
headed “Hong Kong Market Misconduct Tribunal proceedings”; and (ii) the
potential impact on the Group’s business as a result of the continuous Sino-
US trade war, no important event affecting the Group has occurred since the
year-end date 31 March 2019.

The business operations and results may be affected by various factors.
The discussion of principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 13 of this annual report. The
financial risk factors are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of risk management are set out in the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” under the paragraph headed “Risk
management and internal control” on pages 39 to 40 of this annual report.

In addition, discussions on the environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the relevant local laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group and the account of the key relationships of
the Group with its employees, customers and suppliers are set out in the
section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 47
to 69 of this annual report.
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Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 78 of this annual report.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK4.0 cents per ordinary share was paid during
the year. The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK5.0 cents per ordinary share (the “Dividend”), subject to the approval by
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “Annual
General Meeting”). The Dividend is expected to be paid on 21 August 2019,
to those shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of
the Company on 5 August 2019.

Other reserves

Movements in other reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 20 and 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Share capital and share options

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in Notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’'s reserves of approximately
HK$138,800,000 (subject to provisions of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended)) and retained earnings of approximately
HK$35,131,000 were available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws (the
“Bye-Laws”) and the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$176,000.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Retirement schemes

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the Group's financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on pages 3 to 5 of this annual report.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon
Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael
Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman
Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben
Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

According to the Bye-Laws, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. Pursuant to Bye-Law 99, Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben, Ms. Chow Lai
Fung and Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy will retire from the office of Directors by
rotation at the Annual General Meeting. Such Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting. All the other
Directors will remain in office.

Brief biographical details of the Directors who will be proposed for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting are set out on pages 14 to 17.
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Independence of independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2019, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
the following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Interests in the Company

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0

A

T T P
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EEMETYEMARBAREEMHNB ARG —
FRRIEMBAEHERECREMERIN ZKEBR
BaK -

BYFHTESZBYM

ARFCEESBIFNTESRETERERIIM
BRARESF EMAR(T EHHRR D) E3BEEL 2
FEBIMERL  XR/AEBIIFNTEETHE
BIANL -

EERTETBRAEBREAQAHHEBERD
Az - HEARORES 2 Em

20193 A31H - ARABESRFETHAERAEAR
AIEBERR(EEREHFRPERA (BB ENE
SME) ([FHREEGERD ) EXVED) 2 ikh - HER
B RESFES AR AREEF KA EEHIE352
EFE 2SR BB LR ITAZESTETES
R SRZESFAN([ZESFR] ) BANE R QG REBE
ERGMBRABN([BRZFT]) 2 AR -

RARQT zEH

Number of
underlying Shares
(in respect of
share options)

each (the “Shares”) EEROHE (%

BROABRZEEBR(RY ] HE BREMS)®
Interest of *Approximate
Beneficial Beneficiary controlled Beneficial percentage of
Name of Directors interests of a trust corporations interests Total shareholding
EEfs BERER EREE FRLEEER Bagsn gy EOBRESH
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny s 11,757,000 - 42,571,500 - 54,328,500 12.76%
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 1,000 = 64,571,500% 410,000 64,982,500 15.26%
Chow Man Yan, Michael [Ex 8,355,000 S 70,571,500%) - 78,926,500 18.53%
Yuen Chi King, Wyman R = = = 4,020,000 4,020,000 0.94%
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BLR 32,020,000 42,571,500 o - 74,591,500 17.52%
Chow Lai Fung FER 1,020,000 = = 3,000,000 4,020,000 0.94%

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue
(i.e. 425,839,000 Shares) as at 31 March 2019.
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Directors’ and chief executive’'s interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (Continued)

Interests in the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The 42,571,500 Shares are held by Loyal Fair Group Limited, a private limited
company wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd, which was in turn wholly
owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd was the
trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then beneficially owned by the Yeung
Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family
members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.
Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny.

2. The 64,571,500 Shares are held by Sky Talent Enterprises Limited, a private

limited company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

3. The 70,571,500 Shares are held by Asia Supreme Limited, a private limited

company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

4. Share options were granted to the Directors under the share option schemes
of the Company, details of which are separately disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31
March 2019.

Information on share option schemes

The Company adopted share option schemes under which it may grant
options to eligible participants (including executive Directors) to subscribe
for Shares. Details of the schemes are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”).
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012,
an ordinary resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme.
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Information on share option schemes (Continued)

Subject to the exercise periods, all options (to the extent not already
exercised) granted prior to the termination of the Old Scheme shall continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Old Scheme. As at 31
March 2019, no options were granted under the New Scheme.

The principal terms of the New Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose of the New Scheme

As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to
the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the New Scheme

Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive Director), any non-executive Director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest,
and any other party having contribution to the development of the
Group.

3. Total number of Shares available for issue under the New
Scheme and percentage to the issued share capital as at
31 March 2019

41,013,900 Shares (approximately 9.63% of the total issued share
capital as at 31 March 2019).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Scheme

Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

5. The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the date of
offer of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to
the grantee thereof.
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Information on share option schemes (Continued)

6.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the New Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.0 on or before the date
of acceptance (which may not be later than 21 days from the date of
offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price
Being determined by the Directors and being not less than the highest

of:

a. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

b.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

¢.  the nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 August 2012 (being the date of fulfilment of all
conditions on the adoption of the New Scheme).

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Movements in the share options granted to and held by the Directors under
the Old Scheme during the year were as follows:

Number of underlying Shares

Report of the Directors
EEERE

EERARODHES ZEF

ENRBEHE  BTEFUMRBEBREY
T -

RERGHE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed Subscription
Beginning during during during End of price per Date of Exercise period

Name of Directors of the year the year the year the year the year Share grant (dd/immlyyyy)  Note
EEps £ EaRY  FRTE FRXN ER SRHORBE RLAH TEBE(B/B/F) Wi

'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 (HKS)

Tk T TR Tk TR ()
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R4 410 - - - 410 1.1 281312012 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2022 1
Yuen Chi King, Wyman R 2,020 - - - 2,020 1.1 281312012 28/03/2013 - 2710312022 1

2,000 - - - 2,000 11 28312012 28/03/2014 - 2710312022 2
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BOR 2,020 - (2,020) - - 11 2832012 28/03/2013 - 27103/2022 1

2,000 - (2,000) - - 11 2832012 28/0312014 - 2710312022 2
Chow Lai Fung JFIER 1,000 - - - 1,000 11 281312012 2810312013 - 27/03/2022 1

2,000 - - - 2,000 11 281312012 2810312014 - 27/03/2022 2
Total: @t 11,450 - (4,020) - 7430
Notes: T

(1) The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
(2)  The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of grant.

(3)  Details of other movement of share options held by employees include employees
of the Company and of its subsidiaries working under employment contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which are regarded as “continuous contracts”
for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ interests in contracts EERENP 2R

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 33 to the FREGAMEBRERMABAFEZBEALZZIN - B
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation — F4R S ANEE AT MEFRE - AR B E A HE QG
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries SIERARIWERANEE 2 EBEFTMEEHAR
or holding companies was a party and in which any of the Directors or RIEEITHASEENEEREEAREZEEAHL -
the Company’s chief executive had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares FERRARALQATIRORIEBBERGD 2ER
and underlying shares of the Company

The following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the AT AT (WIARRZERHEBTHRAE)R2019F3
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying  A31H# 8 B %17 E @M% L2 K MABRE K
Shares at 31 March 2019 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary Shares in ~ Z XS AR - MAERIEBSH K EE KO EXVEL 2
issue which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions  NMZE3DWZRTEMAAFHE © WHETHARRQFIR
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in  1EE % I B & 51 E336 (577 2 2 B2 -

the register kept by the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

*Approximate
percentage of

Name of shareholders Number of Shares Capacity Note interest

BRREEHR RHEE g4 M AR BEDL

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited 64,571,500 Beneficial owner 2 15.16%
EmEAA

Asia Supreme Limited 70,571,500 Beneficial owner 3 16.57%
EHEAA

Loyal Fair Group Limited 42,571,500 Beneficial owner 4 10.00%
EmfEE A

Golden Hope Financial Limited 42,571,500 Interest of controlled corporation 4 10.00%
REGEE 2w

Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd 42,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 4 10.00%
EFEAGREBEFEARIN)

Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited 42,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 5 10.00%
EFEAEBEFEARIN)

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen 54,328,500 Interest of spouse 6 12.76%
BRAEBLL BB 2 s

Ms. Leung Woon Yee 64,982,500 Interest of spouse 7 15.26%
BB+ Bz #ER

Ms. Cai Liting 78,926,500 Interest of spouse 8 18.53%
g2RELLT Bz ER

Ms. Zong Xiao Cui 74,591,500 Interest of spouse 9 17.52%
RANRLE BBz e

Mr. David Michael Webb 15,169,000 Beneficial owner 3.56%
David Michael Webb 4t 4 EmEA A

Mr. David Michael Webb 27,007,000 Interest of controlled corporation 10 6.34%
David Michael Webb %t 4 REGEE 2 s

Preferable Situation Assets Limited 27,007,000 Beneficial owner 10 6.34%
EmBEAA

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue * BEBESTIER2019E38318 B 1T K 2 & (8
(i.e. 425,839,000 Shares) as at 31 March 2019. 425,839,000/% AR 17 ) 5T &
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

1. Interests in the Shares and the underlying Shares stated above represented long
positions.

2. Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

3. Asia Supreme Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

4. Loyal Fair Group Limited was wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd,
which was in turn wholly owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun
Property (PTC) Ltd was the trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then
beneficially owned by the Yeung Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the
objects of which were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny,
including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben. Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly
owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

5. Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited was the trustee of Yeung Family Trust, a
discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family members of Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

6. Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen is the wife of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.
7. Ms. Leung Woon Yee is the wife of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

8. Ms. Cai Liting is the wife of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

9. Ms. Zong Xiao Cui is the wife of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

10. These Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which was owned by Mr. David Michael Webb. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. David Michael Webb was deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited. Mr. David Michael Webb had an
aggregate interest in 42,176,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there was
no other person who had an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2019.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.
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Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 80.9% of the Group's total revenue and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 21.1% of the
Group's total purchases. The largest customer to the Group accounted for
approximately 26.8% of the Group's total revenue. None of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) of the
Company had an interest in these five largest customers and/or these five
largest suppliers.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 March 2019 and is of the opinion that such
statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the requirements of applicable laws, codes and regulations and
that adequate disclosure pursuant thereto have been made.

Public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company's issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board,

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

28

FTEFEFRHUER

HZE2019F3A3MHLFE - AEBRAREPEAEE
BUTA#80.9%  MAEBMAKNEEEEAEEER
BRA21.1% NEBZSABRPIEAREBBIKALY
26.8% c AAAEF BEZHMEARTMBRR(FHE
ERTA BAEARRIRAES%E ) BERZEREAE
PR/ AKREEEES#E -

EREES

ERZ B EMAEEE 2019938318 LHBF
BB HRE  RAGEBRIFTEAEAGTEL - £
MR A REARERE - SFRIRBAGIZETE - MEEL
EH DT -

PEERE
BEARRARAHEEENEBNER RRESHFRA
RARERE  AZRBREFHALTRAEEZZHAD
T E (AMEARAREEITIRD25%IA L) o

BB

MBHRCHBIB KB EBMEL  KES
SER - EHAERLBENRFBFAE LEF -

RREES

Foy:
FTERITBARE

EFB - 201956 4198

Annual Report 2018/2019



A

Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance practices

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance and endeavours in following the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the “Corporate Governance Code” (the
"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has complied with
the CG Code save for the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1, which is
explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Board of Directors

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategies,
the setting of appropriate strategic policies, monitoring and controlling
the operation and financial performance of the Group, oversight of the
compliance with statutory and regulatory obligation.

The management of the Group, as delegated by the Board, is responsible for
execution of business strategies adopted, implementation of adequate system
and procedures of internal control and risk management, and oversight of
the day-to-day management of the Group's business.

To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed
manner, management provides the Board with monthly management report
which contains year-to-date with summaries of financial performance and key
events of the Group. The monthly management report gives Board members
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board members to
discharge their duties.

The corporate governance duties are performed by the Board. Pursuant
to the terms of reference of the Board, the primary duties of the Board in
relation to corporate governance include introducing and proposing relevant
principles concerning corporate governance and reviewing and determining
the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and to ensure the
corporate governance practices in the Group are in line with the relevant
requirements.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors during the year under review and up
to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman

Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben

Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The brief biographical information of each Director is set out in the
"Biographical details of directors and senior management” section in this
annual report. Save as disclosed therein, there is no other relationship (whether
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships) among
the members of the Board.

Board diversity policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
in August 2013 and has posted it on the Company’'s website. The Board
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of the Company's performance. A truly diverse Board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, industry experience,
educational background, knowledge, expertise, culture, age and gender and
other qualities of Directors. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. All appointments of
Directors will be based on merit while taking into account diversity. The
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and
the Board will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure
it continued effectiveness.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, the Chairman of the Company, is also the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. According to the Code Provision
A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. In view of that Mr. Yeung
has extensive experience in the electronics and acoustics industry and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business development of
the Group, the Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in Mr. Yeung provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership to improve the Company’s efficiency in decision-making
and execution, and effectively capture business opportunities. However, the
Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this arrangement and
consider separating the roles of chairman and chief executive officer when it
thinks appropriate.

The responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer are as
follows:

The Chairman is responsible to determine the overall strategic planning
and business development of the Group after consultation with the Board,
provide leadership for the Board on corporate and strategic planning, ensure
proper proceedings of the Board and encourage all Directors to have active
contribution to the Board's affairs. With the support from the Board’s
members, he manages to implement the major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer, with support of the executive Directors, is
to manage and operate the Group's day-to-day business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Independent non-executive Directors

Throughout the year, the independent non-executive Directors represent
one third of the Board and at least one of whom possesses appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term of one year. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Re-election of members of the Board

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”). According to Bye-Law
99, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben, Ms. Chow Lai
Fung and Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”) and being eligible,
to offer themselves for re-election.

Board and committee attendance

Each year, regular matters reserved for the Board include overall strategies of
the Group, annual budgets, financial statements, dividend policy, corporate
governance function and other major corporate activities. For such purposes,
regular Board meetings are held four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance and
at least 14 days’ notice are given to all Directors so as to give them an
opportunity to attend. The meeting agenda and accompanying board papers
are circulated with sufficient time to allow the Directors to prepare before
meetings.

During the year, the Board held four meetings mainly to review and monitor
the financial performance of the Group; to discuss and approve the corporate
strategies of the Group; to consider and approve the annual budgets, the
financial reports and corporate governance related policies of the Group.
The Chairman of the Board also met with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of executive Directors.

According to the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings. In the 2018 annual
general meeting, all Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, and
the external auditor of the Company attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions except Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy who was unable to
attend the annual general meeting as he was being away from Hong Kong.
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Board and committee attendance (Continued)

Details of the attendance of each of the Directors at board meetings,
committee meetings and annual general meeting held for the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in the table below:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

BEEEeRZEevHERBR#®)

REZE2019F3A3IALEFE S EESHREEETE
o ZECYRMBREEAFAGZFBIHINTE

No. of meetings attended/held

HE T BITEERRE
2018 annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination general

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee  Committee meeting

2018F RR
EEgE Exg BRKZEET® FMHEREE REZEET BFERE
Executive Directors HITES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 15 4/4 - 212 11 11
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon IR 1 48 4/4 - - - 1
Chow Man Yan, Michael X 414 - - - ”n
Yuen Chi King, Wyman JRFAR 4/4 - - - 111
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben 5 HR 4/4 - - - 11
Chow Lai Fung EEE 4/4 - _ - 11
Independent non-executive  BIUFHITEE

Directors

Chung Chi Ping, Roy 5T 4/4 4/4 212 11 0/1
Che Wai Hang, Allen HEE 4/4 4/4 212 11 11
Lee Yiu Pun F R 4/4 4/4 212 17 7
Directors’ training EEEI

To assist the Directors to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, all Directors had attended
relevant seminars and courses. The costs for such training are borne by the
Company.

Directors attended seminars/conferences/forums relevant to his/her
professional duties as directors or self-study of the publications issued by the
regulators, professional bodies and corporate lawyers during the year ended
31 March 2019.

Directors have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and have provided a record of
training they received during the year ended 31 March 2019 to the Company.

Insurance

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in
respect of legal actions taken against the Directors. The Board reviews the
extent of the insurance cover every year.
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Board Committees

The Board has three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. All the Board
committees are empowered by the Board under their own terms of reference
which are published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's
website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive Directors, as
follows:

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

The Board has adopted written terms of reference that set forth the authority
and duties of the committee. The Audit Committee provides an important
link between the Board and the Company's auditor in matters coming within
the scope of the group audit. Its duties are mainly to review the Company’s
financial reports, make recommendations on the appointment, removal
and remuneration of independent auditor, approve audit and audit-related
services, supervise the Company’s internal financial reporting procedures
and management policies, and review the Company's risk management and
internal control systems as well as the internal audit function.

During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings and performed the
following duties:

(1) reviewed the results announcements, financial statements, interim and
annual reports of the Company, with a recommendation to the Board

for approval;

(2) reviewed the risk management policy, risk register and internal audit
year plan of the Group;

(3) reviewed the effectiveness of internal controls and risk mitigation
measures of top 10 risks prioritised in the risk register;

(4) reviewed and made recommendations to Board for the approval of the
revised terms of reference of Audit Committee; and

(5) considered and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of the auditor of the Company.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly defined in its terms of
reference which have been prepared and adopted according to the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the review and
determination of the remuneration policies and packages for Directors
and senior management of the Group. The remuneration packages of
the executive Directors are stipulated in their service agreements with
the Company. Such packages, including basic salaries, director’s fee
and discretionary bonus, are determined by reference to their duties,
responsibilities and experience, prevailing market conditions and their
expected time spent and contributions on the affairs of the Company. The
emoluments of the independent non-executive Directors are determined with
regard to their estimated time spent on the affairs of the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings and
performed the following duties:

reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the discretionary
bonus payable to executive Directors for the financial year ended 31
March 2018;

- reviewed and approved the service agreement of executive Directors;

—  reviewed and approved the proposed remuneration packages of
executive Directors and senior management of the Group; reviewed
and make recommendations to the Board on the directors’ fees of

independent non-executive Directors; and

- reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

According to the terms of reference, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board
at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors taking into account the independence requirements
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; to make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for the Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive, including but not limited to, the policy
concerning the diversity of Board members, and the measurable objectives
for implementing such policy.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting and conducted
the following activities:

reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

- reviewed and assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, including to consider Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen and
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun have served as independent non-executive Directors of
the Company more than nine years;

—  reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and its measurable objectives;

—  reviewed and made recommendations to the Board for the adoption
of the revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee and
the nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) in
compliance with the CG Code; and

—  reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the re-election
of Directors for re-election by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination policy

The Board has formalised its existing practices into the Nomination Policy
and adopted it during the year. The Nomination Policy, which is available on
the Company’s website, sets out the criteria and procedures for identifying
and nominating suitably qualified candidates for appointment to the Board.
The selection criteria specified in the Nomination Policy include:

—  commitment of available time and ability to devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company;

- reputation for integrity;

— accomplishment and/or experience in the relevant industry(ies);

—  effectiveness in carrying out the responsibilities of the Board; and
—  diversity in all its aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive and
decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate any
person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination procedures

For appointing a Director, the secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
call a meeting of the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate the candidate(s) based on the Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy to determine whether the candidate(s) is qualified for
directorship. Further details regarding the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy, please refer to “Board Diversity Policy” and “Nomination
Policy” sections above respectively, The Nomination Committee makes
recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval. Any Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy would be subject to election by the
shareholders at the next general meeting.

For proposing Director(s) to stand for election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board for
consideration and approval in accordance to the Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy.

A circular containing the requisite information on the proposed Director(s)
will be sent to the shareholders prior to the general meeting in accordance
to the Listing Rules.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of Directors to stand for election at any general meeting.
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Company secretary

Ms. Chow Lai Fung is the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) and she is also an executive Director. The company secretary
is responsible for facilitating the Board meeting process, as well as
communication among Board members, with shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and management. During the year, Company Secretary has
confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

.
o

DREME

FREZER/RARB 2 ARWE(ARME ] - R
RERTEST - RAWBAEREEFIESF - UK
EXEEgRB HREFENEBREARARR(KR])

NREREHMER NFRN  RANESHEREDE
KA DS Z R F R -

Directors and senior management’s remuneration EENEHREEEMS
The remuneration of senior management of the Company for the year under REEEE @ AR TSREEB 2 MEFHIWT :
review is set out below:

Number of individuals
Band of remuneration e EE AE
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7C£2,000,00078 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,0017% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T 2

Further particulars regarding the five highest paid employees and directors
remuneration are set out in Notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Auditor's remuneration

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
provided both audit and non-audit services to the Company for a total
remuneration of approximately HK$2,511,000. The relevant fee paid for
audit services amounted to approximately HK$1,686,000. The balance of the
remuneration related to the non-audit services which mainly included the
review of interim results, amounting to approximately HK$210,000; taxation
services, amounting to approximately HK$269,000; and other non-audit
services, amounting to approximately HK$346,000.

Disclosure obligations regarding inside information

In light of the disclosure obligations under the SFO with effect from 1
January 2013, the Board has established the following processes and
procedures across all relevant division(s) and department(s) of the Group for
complying with the disclosure obligations regarding “Inside Information”:

(i)  the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating potential inside
information to the Board; and

the responsibilities of officers in preserving the confidentiality of inside
information, escalating upwards any such potential information and
cascading down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff.
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Securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and senior management of the Group on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, all Directors and senior management
of the Group have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company's code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors and senior management throughout the year ended 31 March
2019.

The Board has also establish procedures for relevant employees, including
certain employees of the Company, certain Directors or employees of its
subsidiaries who are considered to be likely to possess inside information
in relation to the Company or its securities (the “Relevant Employees”), in
respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Company, to
identify and manage the risks faced by the Group, as well as to ensure the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded.
The design of risk management and internal control systems is to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

In view of the requirement in the Listing Rules in relation to the code
provisions on risk management which took effect in 2016, the Company
adopted a risk management policy in March 2016, which was subsequently
revised in 2017. The Board has delegated the Audit Committee with authority
and responsibility to oversee the overall management of risks and report
the results to the Board as set out in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee. The risk management policy is reviewed by the Audit Committee
from time to time.

The Board conducts continuous review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems through the Audit Committee and
internal audit team of the Company. The Company compiles a risk register
according to the risk assessment conducted at the enterprise level, monitors
it on an on-going basis by taking into account emerging issues.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)

The internal control systems and risk management were reviewed during the
year included:

e the scope of the risk management and internal control systems covering
strategic, operational, financial and compliance controls.

e the risk management process, including risk assessment process, risk
prioritisation, and the design of internal controls and risk mitigation
measures of the risks prioritised in the risk register.

e mid-year review on the effectiveness of internal controls and risk
mitigation measures of top 10 risks prioritised in the risk register.

e the annual internal audit plan and the regular internal audit updates.

The internal audit team plays an important role to ensure the risk
management and internal control systems are operating effectively. It
independently reviews compliance of the Group's policy and workflows,
regulatory requirements, risk management and internal controls and evaluate
their adequacy and effectiveness. The internal audit plan is risk-and-control-
based that covers the Group’s significant operations over a cycle and
recurring basis. The annual audit plan is reviewed and endorsed by the Audit
Committee.

The Board's review also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget. There were no
significant areas of concern identified during the year.

The procedures and internal controls for handling and disseminating of inside
information are governed by the Model Code. The policy and procedures
of the Company are explained in the sections of "Disclosure obligations
regarding inside information” and “Securities transactions” of this Corporate
Governance Report.

In light of the above reviews and policies, the Board confirms that the
Group’s risk management and internal controls systems are effective and
adequate.

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements of the Group.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor of the Company are set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report to the shareholders of the Company on
pages 70 to 76 of this annual report.
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Shareholders’ right

1. Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition

1.1

Shareholders have the right to requisition the Company to
convene a special general meeting in the manner prescribed by
and set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act.

Bye-Law 62 provides “The Board may, whenever it thinks
fit, convene a special general meeting, and special general
meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by
the Companies Act, and, in default, may be convened by the
requisitionists.” Pursuant to section 74 of the Companies Act,
Shareholders (“General Meeting Requisitionists”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
may requisition the Directors to forthwith proceed duly to convene
a special general meeting by depositing a written requisition
(“General Meeting Requisition”) at the registered office of the
Company.

The General Meeting Requisition must state the purpose of
the meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at
the meeting), and must be signed by the General Meeting
Requisitionists; the General Meeting Requisition may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
General Meeting Requisitionists.

The General Meeting Requisition shall be deposited at the
registered office and preferably, copied to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company and marked for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary of the Company
at their respective address below:

Registered office of the Company

Canon's Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Head office and principal place of business of the Company
16th Floor, Tower 1

Grand Central Plaza

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary
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Shareholders’ right (continued) BRERBER (&)
1. Procedures for convening special general meeting on 1. EFRBBERREBIIAXEZ2HZERF(E)
requisition (Continued)

1.5 If the Directors fails to proceed to duly convene such meeting 15 MEBEFEREN EXE12BRAENRRRE
within 21 days from the date of the deposit of General Meeting BEREREZAMENAANESZRERAEE -
Requisition as set out in the paragraph 1.2 above, the General AR R @B RARKRKEMIFERRER
Meeting Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than ¥§5EE’]ETT]\$TQTT e MERRE
one half of their total voting rights, may themselves convene a AEBHREEXBHR=EAERE - *EET
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after JERITK B FHRERNERMER -
the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of RRGHRARLLAEFERGER - E?:j
the General Meeting Requisition. A meeting so convened by the A ERAEHEERAeEMN T A
General Meeting Requisitionists shall be convened in the same A e
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Directors.

1.6 Any reasonable expenses incurred by the General Meeting 1.6 ARBlEARRASFRAHEBEERNESS

Requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Board to duly
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the General Meeting
Requisitionists by the Company.

2. Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1

2.2

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
details of which are as follows:

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Address: 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2529 6087

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of the
Company at the designated contacts of Investor Relations of the
Company as below:

Address: 16th Floor, Tower 1, Grand Central Plaza,
138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: ir@fujikon.com

Tel: (852) 2605 5008

Fax: (852) 2694 1338

42

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

REBLAHSEMEENEMAIEER -

2. RHUBHAZESZRER

2.1

2.2

PRERINE EFEAR S - BB - BREKLRE
SNBEAER - EEBEARQRNE RS

BEERDE  FBWT
BEBBLFELRERATA
ik - BHBEF
EEKBHE1835%
ARt TIMIE
EEE - (852) 2862 8555

=5

Bz

(852) 2529 6087

% EﬁTWEHH%F‘aﬁU@K“ﬁTﬁD‘F&ﬁ%Fé%
1%3‘”5;?5 w%/\@(ﬂz’x

ik HFBERR
WHEYDHESE 1385
o R EIS B E 1612
BI :  ir@fujikon.com

TEE - (852) 2605 5008
{55 : (852) 2694 1338

Annual Report 2018/2019



T T P

Shareholders’ right (Continued)
2.

Procedures for raising enquiries (Continued) 2.

2.3 Shareholders are encouraged to make enquires via the online
enquiry form available on the Company’s website at www.fujikon.com.

2.4 Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from
the Company if it deems appropriate.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general 3.
meeting

3.1 Section 79 of the Companies Act provides that, at the expense of
the Resolution Requisitionists (as defined in paragraph 3.2 below)
unless the Company otherwise resolves, it shall be the duty of
the Company on the requisition in writing by the Resolution
Requisitionists:

(a) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b) to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

3.2 "Resolution Requisitionists” means Shareholders making a
requisition under paragraph 3.1 above and shall constitute either:

(@) any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the

meeting to which the requisition relates; or

(b)  not less than one hundred Shareholders.
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Shareholders’ right (Continued)

3. Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting (Continued)

3.3 Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any

3.4

such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to
have notice of the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the
resolution or statement on each such Shareholder in any manner
permitted for service of notice of the meeting, and notice of any
such resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by giving
notice of the general effect of the resolution in any manner
permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of
the resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same
manner and, so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of
the meeting and, where it is not practicable for it to be served
or given at that time, it shall be served or given as soon as
practicable thereafter.

Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to be
met before the Company is bound to give any notice of resolution
or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to section 80 of the
Companies Act, the Company shall not be bound to give notice
of any resolution or to circulate any statement as mentioned in
paragraph 3.1 above unless:—

(@) a copy of the requisition signed by the Resolution
Requisitionists, or two or more copies which between them
contain the signatures of all the Resolution Requisitionists,
is deposited at the registered office of the Company:—

(i) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting;
and

(ii) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one

week before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's expense in
giving effect to the procedures in paragraph 3.1 above
(i.e. the giving of notice of resolution and/or circulation of

statement).

Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring notice
of a resolution has been deposited at the registered office of
the Company, an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy though
not deposited within the above-mentioned time shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ right (Continued)
4. Procedures for propose a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Bye-law 103, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a Director at any general meeting appointed for
such election shall follow the procedures as prescribed in Bye-law 103.
Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are
available on the website of the Company.

The relevant procedures are set out in the document titled “Shareholders’
rights” and "Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director” which are available on the websites of the Company.

Constitutional documents

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year.

Relations with shareholders

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
The Company also holds regular meetings with institutional shareholders.

To ensure effective communication with the Shareholders, the Company
has adopted a formal shareholder communication policy to ensure that the
Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance
and risk profile), in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights
in an informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company.

The Company maintain a corporate website (www.fujikon.com) to keep its
Shareholders and the investing public posted of the Company’s business
developments and operations, list of Directors and their roles and functions,
constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its committees,
procedures of nomination of directors for election, shareholders’ rights and
communication policy, corporate governance practices, announcements,
circulars and reports released to the Stock Exchange and other information
are posted. Information on the Company's website will be updated from time
to time.

The Company’s annual general meeting is one of the important platforms
to communication with the Shareholders. The Annual General Meeting
will be held at 16th Floor, Tower 1, Grand Central Plaza, 138 Shatin Rural
Committee Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong on 30 July 2019. The
full text of the resolutions and explanatory notes in respect of the meeting
are contained in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. All Shareholders
are invited to attend the Annual General Meeting and participate in
communicating with the Company.
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Dividend policy

The Board has approved and adopted the dividend policy in 2019 which is
published on the Company's website. The dividend policy aims to ensure
a stable return to the shareholders and to use the Group's capital more
effectively with this dividend policy. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall take into account the following factors:

(@) the requirements of the Company under applicable laws and
regulations;

the amount of retained profits and distributable reserves of the
Company and its subsidiaries;

(c) any financial covenants and other restrictions bound to the Company;

the financial performance expansion plans, working capital
requirements, and anticipated cash needs of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

(e)

cash dividends from the subsidiaries to the Company; and
(f)  other factors which the Board may deem appropriate.

The form and frequency of dividend declaration and payment shall be at the
sole and absolute discretion of the Board and final dividend shall be subject
to the shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.

Hong Kong Market Misconduct Tribunal proceedings

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 12 April
2019 in relation to the proceedings at the Market Misconduct Tribunal
("MMT") regarding a breach of a disclosure requirement within the meaning
of sections 307A, 307B and 307G of Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"). The proceedings have been concluded on 12 April 2019.

Based on (i) the order made by the MMT; and (ii) information currently
available to the management of the Company and its best estimate, (a)
regulatory fines of HK$1.5 million, of which HK$1.0 million being imposed
on the Company; (b) Securities and Futures Commissions’s costs of
approximately HK$2.7 million; and (c) professional fees, training and other
costs and expenses of approximately HK$6.9 million will be incurred by the
Company, Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny and Ms. Chow Lai Fung in aggregate
in relation to the proceedings at the MMT. The Company is currently
enquiring with professional parties and insurance company in relation to
the estimates as to the amount of professional fees and other costs and
expenses to be incurred by the Company and the amounts to be covered by
the insurance company (collectively, “Estimated Fees"”). As at the date of
this report, the Estimated Fees are yet to be ascertained.

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Our vision

Fujikon is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, marketing
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other
electronic products. The Group has been focusing on technology
innovation to solidify its position in the electro-acoustic market, so
as to achieve its goal of becoming our customers’ preferred strategic
partner in the electro-acoustic and electronic industries. We also place
great emphasis on the sustainable development of the Group while
we strive to expand our business. We have committed to reducing
impacts on the environment from our business operations, safeguarding
employee rights and interests and increasing support to the community,
so as to lay a solid foundation for the development of the Group.

We will continue to strive to incorporate the concept of sustainable
development into the Group's management policy. In this regard,
the Board has formulated the environmental, social and governance
("ESG") strategy and regularly assessed relevant risks, so as to ensure
the Group has adopted and maintained effective risk management and
internal control measures at the ESG level. The management believes
that a viable sustainable business model is essential for the Group to
become the long-term partner for the world leading clients and create
greater value for the shareholders of the Group and other stakeholders.

About this section

The Group is committed to achieving sustainable development by
engaging environmental protection and social development as an
integral part of our business development. This section presents
the environmental and social performance of the Group. This report
is prepared in accordance with the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) to conform
with the relevant disclosure requirements for listed companies issued
by the Stock Exchange. This report has been approved by the Board for
issue.

Unless otherwise stated, this section highlights the environmental
performance of Charter Media (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. under the Group
which is located in Dongguan, China (hereinafter referred to as the
“Headsets and Headphones Plant”), as well as the other social and
governance performance of its Hong Kong office and the plants. This
report covers the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.
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3. Environmental, social and governance structure 3. RE -HERERERS

In order to effectively manage the ESG-related risks, we have BAEBMEIRIRE e hEREERE - B
established the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (the RITERE HERERZE®  FIUBER
“ESG Committee”) which is in charge of formulating the overall ESG B oHekERREAEZ  FHERBREWR
strategies and objectives, regularly monitoring the key performance BEREBTERER  TRESQRERENR
indicators and compliance with laws and regulations, and provides 5 HEREARIFER HETSHIRE i
reports on the overall ESG performance to the Board for approval, RERMEELILR - MRE 22 RERT
while the Environmental, Social and Governance Working Group VE/NERIBIIRE e REAZESQWHARY
is responsible for assisting the ESG Committee in coordinating the FIEE RMITHBIRE  He REREmNIKE
implementation and execution of the relevant ESG measures by all MR ESUEIZEE TRERSHES -

departments, collecting relevant key performance indicator data and
carrying out the report compilation.

Board of Directors EE<

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee 835 - H @ NEAZE®

Environmental, Social and Governance Working Group 235 - & K Ey8 T {E/)\4E

4. Stakeholder engagement and material issues 4. MEHBAINSEREEMHESE
4.1 Stakeholder engagement 4.1 FlFERAS SR

The Group always attaches great importance to the opinions EE—EtHERFEHEINER « T
of the stakeholders. The key stakeholders in our business ERPNETENZHEEFREER - BT -
include customers, employees, suppliers, investors, government g REE  BUTKRE  HERRERE
authorities, communities and industry associations. We believe o BPEEERFSHEBEITOR AR - A
that good communication with the stakeholders provides fhA2E AP EERATHELRESNTE
meaningful reference which is helpful for the Group in formulating EERR o

its long-term goals to promote sustainable development.
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4. Stakeholder engagement and material issues 4. FIZEBEAFNSEREEMHEE %)

(Continued)

4.2 Materiality analysis 4.2 EEMDMN

To ensure that this report covers material ESG issues in the
Group's core business and presents appropriate response
to concerns of the stakeholders, we gather the views of
stakeholders of our headsets and headphones business mainly
through conducting questionnaires to collect feedbacks from our
customers, employees and suppliers, which require the interviewed
stakeholders to prioritise the environmental and social issues
with a rating of 0 (least important) to 5 (most important). The
opinions of the stakeholders will help us to identify and prioritise
the relative material ESG-related issues, which will enable us
to identify the risks associated with our main businesses and to
develop policies and measures to cope with the challenges.

The table below summarises the material ESG issues identified
through the above communication activity:

Employment and labour practices
BRERBIER

—  Labour standard - prohibition of child labour or forced
labour

S TAR Py IEE Teksahlss T
Safety and health

7 B R

Employment relationship

EfRRAE

Employee training and development
BTN ER

Environment
BB
—  Environmental protection regulations
RBREER

Use of resources

EIRE A

Environment and natural resources

RERRAEBIR

49
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RERAREREANEB T EEXBRE - £
gRERTHMNEZERE  WEEHERE
MR THRTIER  HAETREERS
mMEE  BIRHERRESR  UTERE
EEREBNNEEETER - BEEXR
AMEOMERETRRRE L EHEH (&
E2)E5 (REE)FR - MEHEETHE
SE A BRI 0 AL B L BB EZ MR
B HekERTHENARMER  UHEE
ErXExBhaERE - WHERBRERE
HE DA FE £ PR EK -

40 4k

e A

T TRIBBEEBISHRE -
NERBEEMHERA

o

i3

Operation practices

EEEN

Anti-corruption

REE

Intellectual property rights

B EE R

Product quality verification and recall mechanism
E B ST B 3 Wi

Product inquiry mechanism, post-sale services and
feedback mechanism
EmBANKE - SRR RE R R
Customer privacy

B

Supply chain management

g E R

Community
HE

Community investment

HEEA

EERERAA
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5. Environmental protection 5. RERE
5.1 Environmental management system 51 RIEEERA

Environmental protection is essential to sustainable development. ERAEERE  RIEBERELSTAKRE
In conducting our business, we strive to mitigate the damages *ia EEBF  BMBNBREREEEY
and risks to the environment caused by day-to-day operations, REBENEEMRR @ W FREBHEER
and implement energy conservation and emission reduction in Epl:}:l"*fgiﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ HE@}E?:’I&%}E%I
the production process of the headsets and headphones business. RIBRE ’jé/ﬁﬁ BERMER o FME
Meanwhile, efforts have been made to enhance the awareness _LTLEiRE = L,(f"/\lzﬂiﬁiﬁ/fi,ﬁh
of our employees and clients regarding environmental protection ERE E/JEWF

as well as resource and energy conservation. We have set up
an environmental management system to meet the national
environmental protection laws and regulations and achieve
continuous success in emission reduction.

Our efforts in environmental protection have also been recognized BPERBREN TIENESTEENRA -
by the society. The Headsets and Headphones Plant of the Group EBE T B #EBRE 2 IFI1S014001 3R
has obtained the 1S014001 Environmental Management System BEIREE X EMNUKIECQ QCO80000 HSPMA
Certification and the IECQ QC080000 HSPM Hazardous Substances EYEBREEEERRE  UEREEER
Process Management System Certification, which demonstrate R75 EE TEELE ﬁ}ZxJUFDF%fE&}E

the achievements and continuous improvements of the Group in
environmental protection.

& IEC QUALITY ASSESSMENT SYSTEM (IECQ)
I EC covering Electronic Components,
Sl ies, Related ials and P
L] S . For rules and details of the IECQ visit www.iecq org
C I't f. t f R . t t Ll IECQ Certificate of Conformity
erdricate or registration Hazardous Substance Process Management
’ |ECQ Certificate No..  IECQ-H BS109.0019 Issue No:. 7 Status:  Current
RHEEIRR - 1SO 14001:2015 IECG.HBS103 0013 ssue & |ssue Date: 2018/08/08 Org lssue: 200808721
CB Reference No.  HB00D [ECQ 2019/0814
HiER): B CRIE) BTHMEE Charter Media (Dongguan) Co,, Ltd.
el TR kAT RAE ) (Mﬂﬂiﬂﬁd by Fujikon Industrial Applicable to:
i]glgeomsamsn; nanmg wlage « European Directive 2011/85EU ("RoHS — Restriction of the use Of certain Hazardous Substances”) in
i
FRH Humen Town electrical and elsctronic Including all published
;;”cg Guangm Charter Media (Dongguan) Co., Ltd
5 523930 (managed by Fujikon Industrial Co., Lid)
‘L'ﬁ"’ Chi Daning Village, Humen Town
B 523930 na Dongguan, Guangdong, 523830
China
S EMS 502501 The organization has developed and i ce Process . nd
related processes which have been assessed and found to comply with the applicable requirements for IECQ
FHEFFT{ 150 14001:2015 TREFHTAER, WEHRO T HSPM organization approval which is in aocomanne with the Basic Rules IECQ 01 and Rules of Procedure
IECQ 03-5 "IECQ of the IEC Quality Assessment System for
Electronic Components (IECQ), and with respeumme IECQ Spacification:
e L, GM. RS, ERHHLR . - [ECQQC 12- ubstance Process System
i LR AR . PR SR
The nd manufacture of electro-acoustic products inciuding headphones, earphones, This Certificate is appiicable to all electronic components, assemblies, related materials and
speaker systems, wireless d earphy processes for the following scope of activities:
The design and f ele i including cables and cable Design
assemblies, speaker. =
BSI{RA:
Chris Cheung, KX AIARER
HRAER N, 2006-02-13 BRI 2017-12-08 Issued by the Certification Bady: BSI
R AR 2017-11-09 I, 2020-12-07 Kitemark Court, Davy Avenue
Page: 10f 1 Knowlhill, Milton Keynes MKS 8PP [ ]
(%) @ nhe v »—— bsi
E - ..making excellence a habit” Authorized person: °
Paul Tumer
=
e £G5B iy ot
Fufs of Pocahanof o 200 sl . Schamr
i crfcae st schains) my oy b rsvid .
ecaiiRm o
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Environmental protection (continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes

The Group is primarily engaged in the production of headsets and
headphones. In compliance with the environmental protection
laws and regulations in China, and following the principle of up-
to-standard emission and mitigating impacts of pollutants on
the environment and the surrounding areas, we are dedicated
to reducing discharge of pollutants and wastes generated from
business operations by the means of green purchasing and
cleaner production. In compliance with the requirements of the
"Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition® Code of Conduct”, the
Headsets and Headphones Plant has established a comprehensive
management system, formulated guidelines on reducing all
kinds of emissions and actively introduced emission abatement
technology and equipment. During the year, we engaged an
independent environmental inspection company to examine the
waste gas and waste water discharged by the Headsets and
Headphones Plant, with the result showing that the emissions
satisfied the national and local emission standards.

Waste gas

The waste gas emissions from the Headsets and Headphones
Plant mainly include volatile organic compounds (“VOCs") from
painting operation, tin and its compounds from assembling
operation and exhaust gas of power generators. The VOCs from
painting operation are treated by the organic exhaust purification
system. The concentration of waste gas emission is far below the
national and local standards. During the year, the Plant installed
the organic waste gas treatment equipment which can effectively
purify the waste gas produced from painting, pad printing
and molding process through UV photolysis and active carbon
adsorption device. The concentration of waste gas emission that
contain tin and its compounds was lower by 97% during the same
period.

T T P
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RERE(#)
5.2 BFHREEY

ERAEREE ERXE - LFIEANET
PERBRENERER - AERIER R
ESRMERENRAEZNTER/RA - A
BRERBNBEREE  MIESERREEL
SR B BEEDHNE - RIEFTER
REBReTAREAINER  ERXBBE
BERVTE2EMERER  FIESHRD
MRS - WARHR SR P S R - 10
REE - BEH T BILRERN QAR
HMETSmE R BOs /KB - BBl R
B BR R B RIRZE

B
HREBHEEERRETMMMERETE
BREEMEREENEF AR ([ERHN
BHY])  REEREENHEELAY
URBEERER - BmFRELNERLR
MY R EHERFCRRERIE - BEREERR
ERERBER M T R ERE - R
FE - BEENT AHERGRENE - FA
UV KRR IR R E - BRUOFERE
BRI TFEHOER - R #
MEACAMBERIHURERIK T 97% -

Waste gas emissions Unit
BER BB By

Tin and its compounds
HEEEE D
Particles

EER k)

Sulfur dioxide

= i

Nitrogen oxide

AAD

Note' ND denotes “not detected”, i.e. no relevant emission is detected

£45 20182019 D1 =+H

0.0018

0.0556 mg/m?3
25/ UK

1.9 mg/m?
25,/ MK

ND! mg/m?3
25,/ MK

44 mg/m?3
=25,/ MK

L NDA [ ARAa AR R R

EERERAA
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Organic exhaust purification system which is used to filter waste gas  BH#EET FLEZS - @B HTE L E M EBEETE

produced by the injection and painting workshops. EHREER ©
5. Environmental protection (Continued) 5. RERE#)

5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued) 5.2 PR REEY (&)
Waste water J5K
The industrial waste water generated by the Headsets and FHESBEEENTESKEEREEH
Headphones Plant is mainly discharged from painting operation. In VB - BTWIRSERIE I Z)5/KEL - B
order to reduce industrial waste water discharge from the source, ERBECD S ARBRKES  HE5/KBE
the Headsets and Headphones Plant has introduced a circulating B o R RMEHIEHEERY BRI
water treatment system to improve the waste water filtration HEITKEBE - AEMATTBOLETIER
process. In addition, we have formulated relevant procedures to I8 B & R HBIRR PP R A &S B Uk R
ensure that industrial waste water is separately collected and o ZIh B EHBBRERESRERLE
pretreated by a dedicated sedimentation basin before transferring ERTHEE R ATESK - UBRS EKG I81E
it to the institutions recognised by the environmental protection TFEBRREE -

authority for recycling and treatment. Moreover, we conduct
regular examinations on domestic waste water from the Headsets
and Headphones Plant and the dormitory buildings to ensure all
water quality indicators meet the national standards.
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5. Environmental protection (continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Waste water (Continued)

Since a set of waste water treatment equipment was put into
use in September 2017, the intensity of industrial waste water
discharge decreased by approximately 22% during the year.

Industrial waste water
T 55K 2018

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRE-HERERRE
5. RERE#®)
5.2 M REEY (&)
SFK (%)
B2017498 — & 5k R IR B & 8 A

% REEIETKERZEER EFERD
#922% °

Unit
By

Generation of industrial waste water?

TRISKESE?

Intensity
BE

Generation or discharge of industrial waste water/thousand
units produced

THEKELRBNE BTEEMFHK

Note? Industrial waste water represents waste water from painting operation.

53 ==+

3% 2018/2019

Ton/thousand units
produced

l7:
FTAEEHH

0.0042 0.0054

B TR /KIERmEEELERN K
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5. Environmental protection (continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Greenhouse gas

We have been taking proactive measures to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions. The overall CO, emission intensity increased by
14% as compared with last year due to increase in production
process, business expansion and increase in number of employees
during the year. Nevertheless, we will continue to strive to
alleviate impacts on the environment.

5. RERE(#®)
5.2 M REEY (&)
B
B — B REE i - R R =R a
W AEREEIFEN - ¥KRETHA
BFfEE  EHBRE -G RERBERE
FEIAN14% - BRFDA S B ES HRIE Y
RIBERRI L -

Greenhouse gas Unit
BERE 2018 By
Direct Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions (Scope 1)3 554.09 442.54° tCOe
AEREEE R (EE)? WE — S ALk
EREE
Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 2)* 10,571.83 8,923.99 tCO,e
BER R (EkE2) WE— %ﬂ:ﬁu
g
Total GHG Emissions 11,125.92 9,366.53° tCO,e
SR AR A ET ME — %ﬂ:ﬁm
e

Intensity
BE

Emission of CO,/thousand units produced

ZE(LHRHERE BT EENE

Note® Direct GHG Emissions are attributable to petroleum and diesel consumed by
commercial vehicles, gas by kitchens and refrigerants for air-conditioning
systems.

Note* Indirect GHG Emissions are attributable to electricity bought from external
parties.

Note® Data regarding direct GHG emissions and CO, emission intensity for 2018 have
been restated after reviewing the source of GHG emissions.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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1.88°>  Ton/thousand units

produced

W& T

EEHE

H EERAEREHRURBIEREER Ul RERAEA -

REEBROEM  UREFHDELH -

B FEREREHBRRINEES -

B ENERAE R

ERERER - AndinE

REBHEHORRR - EE52018F A E
=EBUE -
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5.

Environmental protection (continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Wastes

We have waste treatment procedures in place. In terms of
hazardous wastes, we safely transfer the hazardous substances
like waste paint residue and used oil in accordance with the
“Management Regulation on Hazardous Wastes Manifests”, and
hand them over to the collection service providers approved
by the environmental protection authority for recycling and
treatment. For non-hazardous wastes, recyclable and non-
recyclable wastes are sorted out and stored separately, of which
most of the non-hazardous wastes can be recycled, so as to
reduce negative impacts on the environment.

Due to the increase in production volume and production
process, the output of the injection and painting workshops
which mainly produce hazardous wastes in aggregate increased
by approximately 39% during the year, thus the intensity
of hazardous waste discharge also increased accordingly.
Furthermore, the non-hazardous waste also increased with
the expansion of workshops and renovation of production
buildings during the year. The Headsets and Headphones Plant
has implemented proper treatment of the hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes according to the procedures set by the
Company. The major discharge of industrial wastes by the
Headsets and Headphones Plant are shown below:

5.
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RERE(#)
5.2 B R EEEY (&)

BEEY

BN EEHRIEEZEMNER - BT
BoTm - RARE EREDEBHESIE
WEIZ2EBERRE  BERASAZY
B WRHRRAPTHAE R B KRR ERIE - &
REFEATE - RASERDURER R
AJERER D BEER - B KA EEER
TLﬁ@WIﬁ%@% PURE S 3R 5 3 X
BETE

AERNREENEETFIEN  T2ELA
EREMATERERERESLENT L
39% - BB FREF R E E IR AR R AN
ZIN o BEBRYTAEARFEEZEH LB
EXEBMIES - B#EE S RBRARHER
B REREAEEREFTED - TR
HREBBMEN BT E T EBEZYNTIN

= .
2 -

Wastes Unit
BEEY By

Hazardous wastes®
B EEERS
Non-hazardous wastes’

EERER

Hazardous wastes discharged/thousand
units produced

BERENEERE BTEENK
Non-hazardous wastes discharged/thousand units produced

BEERNERE BTEEME

Note® Hazardous wastes include used oil barrels, oil wiping gloves, waste light tubes,

used ink slag, waste paint residue and used oil etc.

Note’ Including used cardboard boxes, used plastic tips (plastics) and other non-

hazardous wastes, etc.

£45 20182019 DD =+ &

BEEEEENEEEHR
B BRRE - BERRE -

Ton

864 609 Ton
7

Ton/thousand units
produced
Wi EF
EEME
Ton/thousand units
produced

Wa, =T
EEHY

0.007 0.003

0.166 0.122

HEATE  BEEE - BEH2

i BEEARN - ERE(ZR)AREMEZTENSE

RERA A
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5. Environmental protection (Continued)

5.3 Energy Conservation

The Group proactively works in line with national environmental
policies. We also have taken a series of measures in the Headsets
and Headphones Plant to reduce energy consumption, including
using air-conditioners and lightings as less often as possible,
reducing the idle time of production machines and adopting high-
efficiency production machinery, etc. In recent years, we further
extended the use of light-emitting diode (“LED") lightening
system to all the plants and living quarters, and carried out a
pilot plan to apply motion sensor lights and light-activated lights
at the lavatories and corridors with few traffic, so as to further
reduce electricity consumption.

Due to the increasing production volume during the year, the
Headsets and Headphone Plant not only purchased additional
machinery and equipment to further improve the automation
level of production, but also employed more labour to meet
the delivery timelines. The Headsets and Headphone Plant has
made continuous efforts to improve the living standard of our
employees by installing air-conditioners at the dormitories and
introducing various canteen equipment to meet the needs of the
employees during the year. Despite of the increasing electricity
and water consumption during the year, the plant will continue to
promote environmental protection and energy conservation, with
an aim to fulfill our environmental responsibility.
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5. Environmental protection (continued)

5.3 Energy Conservation (Continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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RERE(#)
5.3 HigE(#)

Use of resources Unit
BRER 2018 B

Use of energy
HEIRGE A

Electricity
HEE
Diesel

SME

Liquified petroleum gas
BltAmRE
Water consumption

Ak
Water
AKE

16,770,040 14,156,080 kWh
FRK

10,880 5,570 Litre

ﬂ_

30,710 22,355 Kilogram

197,548 180,670

;Lﬁfk

Intensity
BE

Electricity consumption/thousand units produced

REEERE STEENH

Water consumption/thousand units produced

RkERE BTEEMH

Water used by the Headsets and Headphones Plant is sourced
locally and there is no water sourcing issue.

5.4 Treasure our environment and resources

Over the years, we actively enhanced environmental benefits in
the production process, achieving significant outcomes. Although
the packaging design and materials selection for our headsets
and headphones business is prescribed by the customers, the
packaging materials and other resulting by-products are sorted
out for recycling and reuse as much as possible, so as to reduce
the consumption of social resources.

3,230.6 2,840.7 kWh/thousand units

produced
FTEE
BTEEMH
m3/thousand units
produced
NHKS
BTEEMH

38.1 36.3

E#MEBBENRKERAEM - WELR
EfRKERMERE -

54 REREBERER

B2 FREBIRAEEBEORREEE
WHSEEMKSR - AEREFEDDNBE
RETRYEHERABEFIETE - BEEBREDR
&EE&EFHEE’Jﬁ’rHEMTEED B e#ETY
o WERAEMR AR ERERE R ZIXF
A LM%@WiQﬁm/ﬁﬁ
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6.

Employee caring

6.1 Diversified and equitable workplace

We fully understand that employees are the important assets
of the Group. We commit to create a diversified and equitable
workplace by establishing an equal, respectful and non-
discriminate recruitment policy and offering a sound remuneration
mechanism. Furthermore, the Group has also set up a number of
communication platforms and organised a variety of employee
activities from time to time, including monthly birthday parties,
Christmas party, Annual Party, Spring dinner and all kinds of
sports events, etc., so as to strengthen cohesiveness among
employees, build mutual trust between the management and
employees, create harmonious and pleasant working atmosphere
and establish a quality workplace. The Group has received
the "Happy Company” award from the Promoting Happiness
Index Foundation and Hong Kong Productivity Council for
six consecutive years since 2014 to commend the efforts and
achievements made by the Group in building a happy workplace.
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6.

Employee caring (Continued)

6.1 Diversified and equitable workplace (Continued)

In respect of recruitment and promotion, we stick to the principle
of selecting the right people for the right jobs and ensure a
fair and equitable process without any discrimination. As of 31
March 2019, the Group had a total of 4,567 (2018: 4,121) full-
time employees and 460 (2018: Nil) contract labour. Below is
a breakdown of our workforce by age, gender, position and
education:

250

By age

BEIFRED

5.5% Below 20 A/ 59, 35-below 50
2058 AR 35-505% A T
A46.1% 20-below 35 3.994 50 or above
20-355%A T 508% 3 I
103

By position

BRETRAE D

2 .39, Managers or above

IR |
20 99,  Supervisory staff

BEE
76.8%  General staff

—RIEE

£ 20182019 59
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6. BIEET (#)
6.1 STPEWIERBEE)

FEEBTREL  BROBEOAZAH IUR
FRERDESRBAARA - B 2201943
A318 » £E{EMAH4,5672(2018:4,1214)
208 T 246042 (2018 - T)A KT - 28
BITIEFH - 4R BAKBESHMT :

By gender
REIMHRES

39.7% Male

73

60.3% Female
£°8

148

By education

BHETER
BEES

) /19, Primary school 5 39, College
e P!

89.19, Middle school 3.2 % University or above
Gl REHSA

TEEXERERAA
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6.

Employee caring (Continued)

6.1 Diversified and equitable workplace (Continued)

On the appointment of people, we strictly comply with the
national labour laws, regulations and rules, thus minors under
the age of 16 will not be employed and organisations with child
labour or forced labour will be rejected from our business dealings
or cooperation. The human resources department always carefully
verifies the identity information of each applicant during the
recruitment process. In the year, the Headsets and Headphones
Plant further introduced the face recognition system to verify
whether the information and supporting certificate provided are
consistent with the applicant.

Moreover, we spare no efforts to ensure that employees
enjoy equal opportunities in all aspects including recruitment,
employment, remuneration, promotion and work allocation
and none of the employees are treated unfairly due to factors
such as race, color, age, religion, nationality or disability.
Through relentless enforcement of the policy on prohibition of
discrimination and harassment, we prohibit bullying, bulldozing,
belittling or sexually harassing among the employees, and strictly
restrain the Group from forcing employees to work by way of
violence or other means of illegal restriction of personal freedom,
etc.

In respect of retaining talents, the Group has established a
competitive remuneration and benefit system based on various
factors such as market pay trend, position and skill requirements.
Moreover, the Group has established a performance appraisal
system and a promotion mechanism, defined the responsibilities
and performance indicators of each position, and reviews and
determines the remuneration and promotion arrangement of such
employee after regular performance appraisal.

In addition, we attach great emphasis to communication with
employees and encourage them to give feedback and opinions
through various channels, such as directly reporting to their
superiors, giving suggestions and making enquiries through
hotlines and mailboxes set up in the workplace. For employees
leaving the Company, we also arrange exit interview with them to
understand the reasons for their resignation, so as to improve the
deficiency in the Group's existing employee management system
and policies, with an aim to create a better working environment
for the employees. During the reporting period, the average
turnover rate of the Group was 8.1% (2018: 7.6%).
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RITEEEEHERERZTE  BETE
EEEEHTERE - AREHA - SEH
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6.

Employee caring (Continued)

6.2 Health and safety

Employees are the assets of the Group, and their health and
safety are very significant for the Group. Therefore, in accordance
with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong
and the national occupational-health standards and requirements
of China, we have formulated relevant safety regulations
and rules, in an effort to create a healthy and safe working
environment for the employees. We also offers orientation
trainings for new employees so that they have safety knowledge
related to their posts to avoid any occupational injury accidents.
Furthermore, we also provide health and safety trainings
regularly, enabling employees to enrich relevant occupational
safety and health knowledge.

Regarding Hong Kong headquarters, the employees are mainly
engaged in office work. In accordance with the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong, we arrange
examination of the display screens from time to time, organise
various health-related seminars, and announce relevant
information of occupational safety and health on notice boards.
Moreover, we organise annual physical examination for our
drivers and have formulated driver guidelines to ensure the safety
of drivers and passengers.

In this year, we have achieved zero (2018: Nil) work-related
casualty and 17 (2018: 13) employees were injured at work. With
the goal of achieving “zero” accident, we pledge to continue to
make efforts in improving safety protection facilities as well as
strengthening employees’ safety awareness, so as to constantly
reduce the risks of accidents and work-related injuries on
employees.
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6.

Employee caring (Continued)

6.3 Training and development

We attach importance to the training and development of
employees and dedicate to offering relevant opportunities to
employee, so as to enhance their capability, accommodate our
business development and provide sufficient talent reserve.
Besides basic orientation training, we also develop appropriate
training programmes according to the Group's development
strategies and employees’ performance, including in-house
trainings and subsidised external trainings. In addition,
department heads may submit relevant training application
for approval by the human resources department based on the
development needs of employees, so as to enhance knowledge
and skills of our employees. In this year, the number of
participants of the Group's trainings significantly increased to
6,560 (2018: 5,570) with a total of 16,003 training hours (2018:
15,039 training hours).
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Operations governance

7.1 Supply chain management

The Group puts a high premium on supplier management.
We have formulated the “Procedures on Purchasing Control
and Supplier Management” for the headsets and headphones
business which is designed to manage the suppliers in respect
of quality, delivery time, cost, services and safety, etc. We carry
out strict assessment on the new suppliers before acceptance of
such supplies to ensure they satisfy the requirements on quality
control, environmental management, green product management,
social responsibility, labour force, intellectual property rights
management, safety of goods and anti-terrorism, so as to prevent
their operations from having negative impacts on the environment
and society. We will assess the suppliers on a regular basis to
monitor their performance. In the year, a total of 50 (2018:
80) suppliers were assessed and those who were not up to the
standard will be considered as disqualified.

Information on suppliers of the Headsets and Headphones Plant
by region is as follows:

No. of suppliers
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7.

Operations governance (Continued)

7.2 Product liabilities

The Group is committed to providing premium and safe products
with reliable and consistent quality to customers. We have
developed the “Guidelines for Monitoring of Environmental Impact
of Products and Materials” for the headsets and headphones
business, with an aim to effectively monitor if the products and
materials used in the business activities satisfy international
"Hazardous Substances Free” (HSF) requirement. Regarding new
products and equipment, we will apply for environmental tests
so as to ensure they meet various environmental protection
requirements of customers.

In September 2018, we have obtained 1509001:2015 and
IATF16949:2016 Quality Management System Certification, which
demonstrated the achievement and constant improvement in
quality management made by the Group.

In February 2019, we have further improved our green
product management by initiating the all-around transition of
QC080000:2017 Hazardous Substance Process Management
System. In the year, no product was mandatorily recalled due to
safety and health issues (2018: Nil).
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7. Operations governance (Continued) 7. EEERE)

7.3 Service responsibility 7.3 RBEEE

The Group attaches importance to customers’ feedback and
opinions. Follow-up measures are taken and responses are given
regarding substandard products or customer complaints. In
accordance with the procedures as set out in the “Guidelines for
Handling Customer Complaints” of our headsets and headphones
business, we will get an understanding of the actual circumstance
on which a customer complains, and will handle such complaint
in a timely and efficient manner, so as to constantly improve
product quality and enhance customer satisfaction. During the
year, we received 1 customer complaint (2018: 2 customer
complaints). Going forward, we will continue to reduce response
time regarding market feedback for better adaptation to the
changeable market condition.

In respect of service responsibility, the Group has formulated
stringent policies on intellectual property rights protection, so as
to prevent unauthorised disclosure and use of the technological
information and intellectual property rights of our customers and
the Group in accordance with the “Guidelines for Protection of
Intellectual Property Rights”. The Group has implemented the
following measures regarding the headsets and headphones
business to effectively protect the intellectual property rights of
our customers and the Group:

1. Paperless archives of technological information of product
designs: Going paperless not only promotes the centralised
management and encrypted protection of such information,
but also facilitates the transmission and submission that
requires authorisation. At present, electronic management
has been applied to most of the technological information;

2. Encrypted management of technological information of
product designs: On one hand, E-lock has been applied to
lock up the storage servers with technological information,
allowing employees at different posts to have access to
targeted information only with system authorisation; On
the other hand, technological information shall only be
transmitted by a designated person via dedicated channels
with approval from an authorised person;

3.  Development of sound sample management: In addition to
the “Guidelines for Comprehensive Sample Management”,
the Group has assigned a dedicated laser code for each
sample for management of the physical product samples, so
as to ensure traceable management record for each physical
sample to prevent unauthorised leakage of products;

&£45 20182019 OO =+z®

SEEREPHRELRER - TEENERM
EEPRF—FRERENGE - RIBEFBE
BOlEFRAREHERESE] RMHST
REPRENEERBR THREBRET
REMARNER  UNHEREERRBEM
RATPWMEE - RAFE - HAKINE
(2018 : 2R ) B P& - HRHMFIFFERTT
HMERENRERE  BHREZENT

B -

SEAERBEENESE T BRE N MBER
RERR  RIMNAERREFEXIEGE
REEE P AR E B & H 5T &R F G
TESNEFIEESIA - EERERKTEHCE
AT - BRRER P LB AEE
T

1. EmRFRTESEERAL D
BEREHNEREEMMERE
thERER IR TOERMER
BRIAKBORMEHNERMITEFILE
I8

2. EmXRARMESMNMZER: —7
[ 5| AE-lock$H T £ & #4 80 fef 77 AR 75
o WRBRSERER TR TIERE
MERMABRERRE : 5—0H &
MERRBERSEEALLEZKH
FEAKERBEBET BEBHHEX

3. FIEREEBRERE BT HEMERE
BEBEEEEE Y BAEAKKREE
BENEEHAIRE  AEBRERE
MER - BRE—(EAEYERBE R
EENEELE  MILEEREIEER
fod) 8

RERA A



»

e
1 ol |

o Oy

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERBRE

7.

Operations governance (Continued)

7.3 Service responsibility (Continued)

4. Implementation of employee confidentiality agreement
system: Every employee who may have access to confidential
technological information shall sign the "Employee
Confidentiality Agreement”, under which they are obligated
and responsible for keeping confidential the product
information and trade secrets of the Group;

5.  Technological information of product designs and business
data are under around-the-clock video surveillance to ensure
dynamic control and accessible records of such information.

7.4 Anti-corruption

The Group always upholds “integrity”, and prohibits all bribery
and corruption. Relevant requirements have been set out in
corporate policy guidelines and codes of business ethics. New
employees are required to sign the “Confidentiality and Integrity
Agreement” based on their functions, which lists out clearly
relevant anti-bribery policies of the Group.

In order to prevent bribery and corruption practice, we have
established a mechanism for declaration of interests and
diversified reporting channels, such as reporting to the human
resources department in writing or by email. The Group also
makes every effort to keep confidential the identity of the
informant and to deal with each case in a fair and prudent
manner.

In addition, we also promote message against bribery, blackmail
and fraud through means such as orientation, internal newsletters
and notice board, so as to update employees’ knowledge of
anti-corruption to keep them always vigilant against such
practices. We also regularly invite Independent Commission
Against Corruption (“ICAC") of Hong Kong, or in-house trainers
of the Group to deliver seminars and elaborate anti-corruption
information for employees in Hong Kong and China, so as to
comprehensively strengthen their anti-corruption awareness.
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Community caring 8.

The Group has always adhered to its core value of “We, as a corporate
citizen, devote ourselves to the prosperity of our society”. While cling
to business development, the Group have also formulated relevant
policies to fulfill corporate social responsibility. For the year ended 31
March 2019, the Group has engaged in seven charity events and made
total donations amounting to HK$176,000 (2018: HK$237,000).

8.1 Career guidance for students

In order to cultivate local talents, providing students with a
perception of the future career and career planning, we offer
summer internship for students from universities and middle
schools so that they can gain an understanding of workflows
in a real working environment. In addition, we schedule our
Headsets and Headphones Plant visits for students in Hong Kong
and overseas to enhance their knowledge and understanding
of the Group and the manufacturing industry. It will present
opportunities for the students to get an insightful view of their
future career and plan for their future career development.
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8. Community caring (Continued)

8.2 Engagement in public welfare

Our staff proactively deliver our “Commitment to Public Welfare”
by taking part in all kinds of charity events, including Run for
Brightness 2018, Lifeline Express CCB (Asia) Charity Run/Walk
2018, Yan Chai Charity Walk 2018, Outward Bound Corporate
Challenge 2018, UNICEF Charity Run 2018 and other charity
activities, so as to raise fund to help those in need. In addition,
the Group has held the “Fujikon Blood Donation Day” since 2003
of which our staff members have been very supportive over the
years. This year, around 43 employees and their relatives and
friends participated in the activity.

The Group set up Fujikon Volunteer Team in 2016, presenting an
opportunity for the employees to serve the community. In this
year, our volunteer team participated in the “Care@Mid-Autumn
Festival 2018" organised by Yang Memorial Methodist Social
Service, paying visit to the elderly living alone to offer them gift
packages and blessing for Mid-Autumn Festival. Looking forward,
we plan to expand our volunteer team and participate in more
community services, with an aim to make greater contribution to
the community.

Heading into 2018, the Group received the logo of “Caring
Company 10 Years plus” in recognition of our contribution to the
community for the past ten years, which also certified the Group's
active role in delivering its core value of “We, as a corporate
citizen, devote ourselves to the prosperity of our society”.
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Our ESG awards 0.
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9.1 Employment relationship awards 9.1 EfERRREEARE
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2019 Happy Company

Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong Kong
Productivity Council
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9.2 Society contribution awards 9.2 HEEREEARE

Awards Issuing agency
RIELRE TRE B

Caring Certificate of “Industry Cares” 2018
[TERE L 12018F LRIIELE

Caring Company 2019
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Social Capital Builder (SCB) Awards 2018-2020

Federation of Hong Kong Industries
BEIEES
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

EEL G RGBS

Community Investment & Inclusion Fund, Labour and
Welfare Bureau

BIRENBERIEEXAES
Hong Kong Productivity Council

& & AREF482018-2020
The 9th Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Awards —
Corporate Citizenship Logo (Enterprise Category)
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Partner Employer Award 2018/19 The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium
Business
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Independent Auditor’s Report
& 3L B RN 5 &

e
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FUJIKON INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the

"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 158,
which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Net realisable value of inventories

o Impairment of trade receivables
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BB R

A ———  —

AREENEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
P ES A RIZERET 18

Net realisable value of inventories
Refer to Notes 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2019, inventories of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$313.9 million. As
described in the accounting policies in Note 2.13 to
the consolidated financial statements, inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Management applied judgment in determining the
appropriate provision for obsolete inventories and
inventories with net realisable value below cost. Net
realisable value is determined based upon a detailed
analysis of inventories aging, with reference to the
current marketability and latest selling prices of the
relevant inventories and the current market conditions
existing at the end of the year. For the year ended 31
March 2019, provision for inventories recognised as
expense amounted to approximately HK$6.1 million.

We focused on this area due to the size of the
balances and the judgement and estimates involved by
management in determining the net realisable value of
the inventories.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of net realisable value
of inventories included:

—  We understood and evaluated the key controls by which management
performed in relation to periodic review on provision for inventories, and
validated their effectiveness on a sample basis.

—  We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventories aging used by
management to estimate the appropriate provision for slow moving and
obsolete inventories.

—  We performed analyses on inventories movement data to identify
inventories with indication of slow moving or obsolescence.

—  We reviewed the utilisation of raw materials by production, and
completion of work-in-progress, subsequent to year end, on a sample
basis, to assess the appropriateness of the associated provision made, if
any.

—  We compared the carrying amounts of finished goods, on a sample
basis, to their net realisable values through a detailed review of sales
subsequent to the year end to check for completeness of the associated
provision. Where there are no subsequent sales of the respective finished
goods after the year end, we challenged management as to the realisable
values of the finished goods, corroborating explanations with the aging,
sales orders, historical margins and marketability of the respective
finished goods, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of management
in relation to assessment of net realisable value of inventories to be
supportable by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
B ET FH

Wl'h‘.ﬂnuz““i;f‘Jw:? N

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB BRE

RREENEE®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B ET A R E E18

Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to Notes 4 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$260.6 million with
provision for loss allowance of approximately HK$2.4
million. Provision is made for lifetime expected credit
losses on trade receivables.

Management applied judgement in determining the
appropriate loss allowance on trade receivables. Trade
receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection are
assessed individually for provision for loss allowance.
Expected credit losses are estimated by grouping the
remaining trade receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account the nature of the
customers, their geographical locations and their
ageing categories, and applying expected credit loss
rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of the
trade receivables. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience with an adjustment to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

We focused on this area due to the size of the
balances and the judgement and estimates involved by
management in determining the expected credit loss
allowance of the trade receivables.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of provision for loss
allowance on trade receivables included:

—  We understood, evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, management's
key control over the assessment of recoverability of trade receivable
balances and the related loss allowance, including periodic review on
trade receivables aging, historical loss rates and approval of provision
made.

—  We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade receivables aging
used by management to estimate the appropriate provision for loss
allowance.

—  We obtained management’s assessment of the expected credit loss
allowance of trade receivables and assessed the reasonableness of
the expected loss rates. We corroborated and validated management’s
assessment based on the historical settlement pattern and correspondence
with the customers.

—  We assessed management’s assessment of current market condition and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors by comparing
the data used by management against publicly available information.

—  We checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s calculation for
loss allowance of trade receivables.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgement and estimates

made by management in relation to assessment of loss allowance on trade
receivables to be supportable by available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mak Tze Leung, William.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HEMBRRR

As at 31 March 2019
720193 A31H

Note 2019 2018
i HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets EmBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KR 6 142,442 137,898
Investment property REYE 7 1,400 1,200
Land use rights + {5 FA A 8 3,879 4,316
Non-current deposits and other assets R NHEMEE 4,812 2,758
Available-for-sale financial assets AT HERBEE 9 - 3,928
Financial assets at fair value through other BAFEFAEMER
comprehensive income W B EE 10 3,979 -
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTE E 17 6,644 5,836
Total non-current assets FERBEEAE 163,156 155,936
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 8 12 313,876 237,111
Trade receivables Jﬁ%uﬂziéﬁx 13 258,226 228,332
Other receivables Hfib fE U I8 13 39,149 30,005
Financial assets at fair value through BRTEGABZED
profit or loss BigEE 14 2,109 2,145
Current income tax recoverable BBk ey 1,003 61
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEESEED 15 263,137 408,633
Total current assets MBEERE 877,500 906,287
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables FERTE R 16 173,121 205,668
Contract liabilities, accruals and EHEE - EFERAR
other payables H A J& < 5/ IR 16 125,690 100,078
Current income tax liabilities BHFERAas 4,805 10,044
Total current liabilities mBBERE 303,616 315,790
_Netcurrentassets R®EEFE 573,884 590,497
Total assets less current liabilities BEBREBAR 737,040 746,433
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
___ Deferred income tax liabilities BEMGHAR L 2,184 1,491
Net assets BEFE 734,856 744,942
Equity X
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’'s 52BN A G fREREH A A
equity holders Z IR R fE
Share capital TN 18 42,584 42,107
Other reserves Hi A 20 171,771 191,739
Retained earnings REE & Fl|
— Proposed dividends — R R 26 21,292 21,053
— Others — H A 437,446 435,221
673,093 690,120
Non-controlling interests FEHE A RS 61,763 54,822
Total equity A 734,856 744,942
The financial statements on pages 77 to 158 were approved by the Board of  E{ N 7721588 2 B i 3k & 2 1420196 A19H &

Directors on 19 June 2019 and were signed on its behalf.

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
BEE
Chairman

E

YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON

R T A48

Joint Deputy Chairman

I Bl £

The notes on pages 81 to 158 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEZEWRR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BZE2019F3A31 B ILFE

D —

Note 2019 2018
B 5T HK$’000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 21 1,411,795 1,226,121
Cost of sales SHER A (1,154,092) (978,377)
Gross profit ER 257,703 247,744
Other gains/(losses) — net Hiblzs/(E518) —F58 22 8,046 (15,973)
Distribution and selling expenses PR EE (14,293) (12,903)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITHEH (166,569) (154,662)
(Provision)/reversal of provision for JEW S FORE
impairment of trade receivables (Bf#) /[ (871) 2,105
Operating profit I 23 84,016 66,311
Finance income — net BB WA —FEE 24 4,572 3,278
Profit before income tax R P15 B4 Bl & A 88,588 69,589
Income tax expenses Frisfis 25 (19,620) (15,310)
Profit for the year F N | 68,968 54,279
Other comprehensive income: Hfh 2 E s
Items that have been reclassified or may be BEF ML RE A RE
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: FotaEEm o HA -
— Currency translation differences —EHER (26,683) 43,244
— Fair value gains on financial assets —RAFEE AHAM
at fair value through other 2 W 2= 7Y B 75
comprehensive income BEZ N FEKE 10 51 =
— Fair value losses on available-for-sale financial —AHHETBEEY
assets NEEEE 9 = (25)
— Release of investment reserve upon —HENHEENH
disposal of available-for-sale BERMERZ
financial assets HA 20 = 20
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEEIRE - B0
oonetoftax o] Y (26,632) 43,239
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEHWNREEE 42,336 97,518
Profit attributable to: A BRI
Equity holders of the Company RAaRERE A 40,490 30,518
Non-controlling interests FE ) | R 2 28,478 23,761
68,968 54,279
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FHEHWEBERS
Equity holders of the Company RAERERE A 15,795 70,701
Non-controlling interests FEVE I 1 f 26,541 26,817
42,336 97,518
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the FHRHEBARAREZREA
equity holders of the Company for the year: A EIREF
— Basic (HK cents per share) —ER (AN 27 9.6 7.3
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — g (FREL) 27 9.5 7.2

The notes on pages 81 to 158 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEHEREIR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE2019F3A31HIEFE

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

BEREAARREREA
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  reserves  earnings interests equity
FFEFI
FitzE BEA  HittRE REEH Bx  ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2017 H2017F4818 42,026 156,810 465,940 47,605 712,381
Profit for the year FRRF - - 30,518 23,761 54,279
Other comprehensive income: Hp 2
- Currency translation differences —ERERE 20 - 40,188 - 3,056 43,244
— Fair value losses on available-for-sale financial —AHERKEELA
assets TEER 20 = (25) = = (25)
— Release of investment reserve upon disposal of —HETHNENBEE
available-for-sale financial assets Bk RERE 20 - 20 - - 20
Total comprehensive income for the year BE018F3A31BLEE
ended 31 March 2018 PEYERRE - 40,183 30,518 26,817 97,518
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: BIEENENAESRDE
TR S -
Employee share option scheme: EEREMRETE
~ Lapse of share options — BB 20 = (6,457) 6,457 = -
~ Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise — (IR m B TR
of share options LT8R 20 81 804 - - 885
Appropriation of statutory reserve BREZLTRE 20 - 399 (399) = =
Dividends paid BERARE - - (46242)  (19,600)  (65,842)
At 31 March 2018 RW201853A31H 42,107 191,739 456,274 54,822 744,942
Profit for the year FREF - - 40,490 28,478 68,968
Other comprehensive income: Hi 2wk
- Currency translation differences —[EN =8 20 - (24,746) - (1,937)  (26,683)
~ Fair value gains on financial assets —RAFEFAEMEE
at fair value through other =g BEELA
comprehensive income TEkE 20 - 51 - - 51
Total comprehensive income for the year BZE019F3ANBLFE
ended 31 March 2019 FHEREEE - (24,695) 40,490 26,541 42,336
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: BIEENENAEFDE
I8R5
Employee share option scheme: ESBRES -
— Lapse of share options - BEREXT 20 = (45) 45 - -
~ Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise — {7 BT 21T (D
of share options ZFEHA 20 471 4,772 - - 5,249
Dividends paid BENAKE - - (38,071)  (19,600)  (57,671)
At 31 March 2019 #2019%3H31H 42,584 171,71 458,738 61,763 734,856

The notes on pages 81 to 158 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SZEHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BZE2019F3A31 B ILFE

Note 2019 2018
ihg=s HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRERE
Cash (used in)/generated from R (FTA),/ B3
operations Z2He 30(a) (24,538) 49,046
Interest paid ERALE (24) (12)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREENEH (16,364) (14,516)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EREBBNEB 95 360
Withholding tax on dividends paid BRI EFEI = (334)
China corporate income tax paid ERPEEEMREHR (9,477) (5.097)
China corporate income tax refunded EREFBSEMSH - 52
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating KESES(FA) B
activities W FEE (50,308 29,499
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEESRE
Interest received AR 4,749 3,134
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAYE - BE K& (42,120) (24,341)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WE R&E
plant and equipment FRiS 518 844 397
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEAMHHENBEE
financial assets FRi5 578 = 163
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair PERAFEFABRN
value through profit or loss MIEEESHIE - 725
Increase in non-current deposits IEm B &M (3,061) (1,566)
Net cash used in investing activities KREREMAZE 58 (39,588) (21,488)
Cash flows from financing activities METHESRE
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options TR EREMZEITARS  30(b) 5,249 885
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests in a EENIEYEEVNGIE 2 L
subsidiary w2 IRE 30(b) (19,600) (19,600)
Dividends paid to the Company's equity ENARRRERE A
holders 2R B 30(b) (38,071) (46,242)
_Net cash used in financing activities | mEZDHAZReFE (52422 (64.957)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEYRD FE (142,318) (56,946)
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents  IR& RIRSZEYIE K =4 (3,178) 9,634
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FHR S RESZEY 408,633 455,945
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREERBREEEY 263,137 408,633

The notes on pages 81 to 158 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the design,
manufacture, marketing and trading of electro-acoustic products,
accessories and other electronic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment property, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, and financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or
loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HRE B REK MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2 FERFTBRBME2)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)
(a) New and amended standards, improvement (a) XEEHEMZHTRKETER -

and interpretations to standards (collectively
the “Amendments”) adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following Amendments for the first
time for its financial year commencing on 1 April 2018:

ERZBGERRB(RBIETE D

AEBR2018F481B R 2B E
EEREANUTMERTA :

HKFRSs (Amendments)
BRI REER(EETA)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)
BRI EERNFE 295 (EFTA)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

BB R EERIF 45 (EFTA)
HKFRS 9

B MRS ERIFE 95

HKFRS 15
BAEMBREERIH155%

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)
BB R EERIFE155 (85T A)

HKAS 40 (Amendments)
BB ERFA05 (EFTAR)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22
BE (AR BHRERELZES)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle
BRI RELERN2014F 220165 B H 2 FESUE

Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions

BRI RER 2 NRRX B2 DB RETE

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance contracts
JERBEEMBHRELEIReRMTE —HRAEEMBRELR
BARRBEL

Financial instruments
SRTH

Revenue from contracts with customers
e Sz
e

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
EEB SIS mELERFE155%

Transfer to investment property

BREMEER

Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

SNER B R FAWIENRE

—BEF225

The impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
(“HKFRS 9”) and HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers (“HKFRS 15”) and the new accounting policies are
disclosed in Note 2.2 below. Reclassification of impairment
losses on financial assets is also required as a result of
consequential changes made to HKAS 1 Presentation of
financial statements. Impairment losses on financial assets
that were previously classified as administrative expenses
are now presented separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. The adoption of other amended
standards and interpretations to standards did not have a
material impact on the Group's accounting policies and did not
require retrospective adjustments.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and
interpretations to standards that have been

issued but are not effective

A number of new and amended standards and interpretations
to standards are effective for the Group’s annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2019 and have not been early
adopted in preparing these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRSs (Amendments)
ERVHREER(EETA)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
BRI EERNEINR (EFTA)

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)
BB R EERIF IR (EFTA)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BARPBREENFI0ERE LG
ERIFE285F (BRI &)

HKFRS 16
BARMBHRE RS 165%

HKFRS 17
BARMBHREEAE175

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments)
B G RTERE 15 BB SRR
EXEACCHIEN)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)
ER G ERE195R(BFTA)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)
BB ERE285 (BFTA)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23
EX(BBRUHREREZE D)
—REE23R

Conceptual framework for financial
reporting 2018
B S B ESR2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BRE KRR

FEEFHREME D)
2.1 REEEE)

(b) THEMENRERZHTREERT
ERILIRER 2 R

BT REEFTERER 22
BERAEE019F4818 5 2 &
B FEHEAES  ERREZE
RE B MR REIR PN

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 cycle’
FEM B MELENN2015FE2017FBH 2 FEUCE

Definition of a business?

X2 ER?

Prepayment features with negative compensation'
BB ME 2 BNFORER

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture*

REERAEBENTNEE AR ZBMzEELEHIEA
Leases'
Ha

Insurance contract?
IR G %3

AR

Definition of material?

BERZER?
Plan amendments, curtailment or settlement’
FTENEET - AR AEE!

Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures'
REZE AR REE AR 2 REER

Uncertainty over income tax treatments’

PSR IE < INREE 1!

Revised conceptual framework for financial reporting?

RAEFT 2 IS B SHE 2R

1 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2019
F20195F1 A1 Bk 2 & FIA 2 BF E R A X

2 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2020
F20205F1 A1 B3k 2 & FiA 2 ST BUF E AR A AR

3 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2021451 A1 Bk 2 & FRtA 2 BB E R A 2K

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HRE B REK MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2 FERFTBRBME2)
21 mBEREE)
(b) BHEMEERERZHTREET

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and

interpretations to standards that have been
issued but are not effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new and amended standards and
interpretations to standards in the period of initial application.
So far the Group has identified some aspects of certain HKFRS
16 Leases (“HKFRS 16") which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below:

HKFRS 16, Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost
all leases being recognised on the consolidated statement
of financial position by lessees, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and
a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the accounting for the Group's
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$20.4 million (Note 31(b)) in respect of certain properties.
Upon the initial adoption of the standard, the opening
balances of lease liabilities and the corresponding right-of-use
assets will be recognised, after taking into account the effects
of discounting, as at 1 April 2019. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the profit or loss over the period of the
lease.

The Group has not yet fully assessed the adjustments, if any,
that are necessary for example because of the change in the
definition of the lease term and the different treatment of
variable lease payments and of extension and termination
options. It is therefore not yet possible to estimate the amount
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that will have to
be recognised on adoption of the new standard and how this
may affect the Group’s profit or loss and classification of cash
flows going forward.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and
interpretations to standards that have been
issued but are not effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. The Group will apply the standard from
its mandatory adoption date. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

2.2 Change in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated financial statements and also
discloses the new accounting policies that have been applied from 1
April 2018, where they are different to those applied in prior years.

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement (“HKAS 39") that
relate to the recognition, classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of
financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018 resulted in
changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
The new accounting policies are set out in Note 2.11 below.
In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 9,
comparative figures have not been restated.

(i) Classification and measurement

On 1 April 2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has assessed which
business models apply to the financial assets held by the
Group and has classified its financial instruments into
the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMIERERMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Continued)
(i) Classification and measurement (Continued)

The main effects from this reclassification are as follows:

D —

2 FEETBEHBE#R)
2.2 SR BEREH(F)

RANERMBREERNESR(E)
() 2ERFAERGE)
HWEBHPRZIBZENMT

(a)

As at 1 April 2018
#20185F4 518

As previously Reclassification

stated under HKFRS 9 Restated
REEBNG
%R
ELL
LRI 25 R bR Tl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Available-for-sale financial assets A ER R EE ([ At
("AFS") LEMBEE]) 3,928 (3,928) =
Financial assets at fair value through EBEAFEFAEMZEK
other comprehensive income mHIHBEE([EATF
(“Fvoct”) BEEF A A 2K
BB EE] - 3,928 3,928

The Group has elected to present in other comprehensive
income ("0CI") changes in fair value of its debt
instruments previously classified as AFS, because these
investments are held for both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling of these assets. As a result, assets
with fair value of HK$3,928,000 were reclassified from
AFS to FVOCI and fair value gains of HK$38,000 were
reclassified from AFS reserve to FVOCI reserve within the
“Investment reserve” on 1 April 2018.

Equity securities held for trading are required to be held
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
under HKFRS 9. There was no impact on the amounts
recognised in relation to these assets from the adoption
of HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BRE KRR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2 FERFTBRBME2)
2.2 BHBEREH(H)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Continued) (a) BMNEBMBHRELENEIR(ZE)
(i) Classification and measurement (Continued) (i) PERFAEE)

In addition, there is no impact on the Group's accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL")
and the Group does not have any such liabilities which
are subject to HKFRS 9.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three main types of financial assets that
are subject to HKFRS 9's new expected credit loss model:

. Trade receivables and contract assets;

. Other financial assets carried at amortised costs
(including cash and cash equivalents and other
receivables); and

. Debt instruments carried at FVOCI.

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes
of assets. The impact of the change in impairment
methodology is as follows:

(a) Trade receivables and contract assets
The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The contract assets relate to
unbilled sales of goods and services and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the
trade receivables for the same types of contracts.
The Group has therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUHERKRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(ii)
(a)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
The Group has assessed the expected credit
loss model applied to the trade receivables and
contract assets as at 1 April 2018 and the change
in impairment methodologies did not have any
material impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements and the opening loss allowance
is not restated in this respect.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group, and a failure make contractual
payments for a period of greater than 180 days
past due.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables, the expected credit loss is based
on the 12-month expected credit loss. It is the
portion of lifetime expected credit loss that results
from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime expected
credit loss. The Group has applied the expected
credit loss model to other receivables as at 1 April
2018 and the change in impairment methodologies
did not have any material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements and the opening
loss allowance is not restated in this respect.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Debt instruments

All of the entity’s debt instruments at FVOCI are
considered to have low credit risk. Instruments
are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low risk of default and the issuer has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Adoption of HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18 Revenue (“HKAS
18"), which covered revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and HKAS 11 Construction contracts,
which specified the accounting for construction contracts. The
Group has elected to use the modified retrospective approach
which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption will
be recognised in retained earnings at 1 April 2018. Therefore,
comparative information has not been restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the
Group has applied the new requirements only to contracts that
were not completed before 1 April 2018.

(i) Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from provision of services was
recognised when services are rendered, whereas revenue
from sale of goods was generally recognised at a point
in time when the risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods had passed to the customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised when the customer obtains control
of the promised good or service in the contract. This
may be at a single point in time or over time. HKFRS 15
identifies the following three situations in which control
of the promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

e When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance, as the Group performs;

e When the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

e When the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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REUHERKRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)
(b) Adoption of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

0]

(i)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the Group's activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS
15 the Group recognises revenue for the sale of that
goods or services at a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators that is considered
in determining when the transfer of control occurs. The
adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant impact
on the Group's financial position and results of operation
for the period. There is also no material impact to the
Group's retained earnings as at 1 April 2018.

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the
Group has an unconditional right to consideration. If
the Group recognises the related revenue before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration for the
promised goods and services in the contract, then the
entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract
asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable,
is recognised when a customer pays consideration, or
is contractually required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the Group recognises
the related revenue. For a single contract with the
customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts
are not presented on a net basis. The impact on the
Group's financial position by the application of HKFRS
15 as compared to HKAS 18 that was previously in effect
before the adoption of HKFRS 15 is as follows:
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 90 Annual Report 2018/2019



Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate
used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUHERKRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.
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BRE KRR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2 FERFHBRBME2)
2.4 Segment reporting 24 HBHE

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors who collectively make
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
"functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, are included in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HRE B REK MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income presented are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average rate is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference
is reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment, other than construction-in-progress, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as Shorter of remaining lease term of

finance lease 30-50 years or useful life
Buildings 2.5% to 8'/3%
Machinery and moulds 10% to 50%
Furniture and equipment 20% to 30%
Motor vehicles 30%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HRE B REK MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within
“other gains/(losses) — net”, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents consideration
paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants and
buildings are situated for a period of 50 years. Amortisation of land
use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents office buildings under
construction and machinery and equipment pending installation. It
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes the
original cost of land, construction expenditures incurred, machinery
and equipment and related installation costs, and other costs
attributable to the construction of the buildings and installation of
machinery and equipment. No depreciation is provided in respect
of construction-in-progress until the construction work is completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are brought
into use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in
the consolidated group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it was a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Investment property (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation reserve of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested at
least annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUHERKRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11Financial assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification

From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

e  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in “other gains/
(losses) — net” together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

° FVOCI:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other
gains/(losses) — net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in “other
gains/(losses) — net” and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUHERKRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

(d)

0]

(i)

Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVPL:
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within “other gains/(losses) — net” in
the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group's management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in “other gains/(losses) — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 April 2018,

the Group assesses on a forward

looking basis the expected credit losses associated with
its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For
trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, details are disclosed in Note 13.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 FESTBREHSE®)
QN BKEEE)
(e) 201853 A31HAIER 2ETHXE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 March

2018

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. As a result, the
comparative information provided continues to be accounted
for in accordance with the Group's previous accounting policy.

Until 31 March 2018 the Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories:

e financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
. loans and receivables; and
. available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification determined on the purpose for which the

AEECEPERBTEUEREE
AIES  BETTEIILRE
BBt CREZERENI#
BIRRAKE LI Z SR BERAR °

R2018F3 A31H AT » AEEICEE
BEENBEAETHIER:

o RAHERABZENMEEE:
o ERREYWHIE: K
o WHHEEMBEE -

DHERBESKEZBENEE - &

investments were acquired. Management determined the BECVRERBECEELEEZS
classification of its investments at initial recognition. o
(i) Subsequent measurement (i) #EFE
The measurement at initial recognition did not change on iR 2t E W EEARANE
adoption of HKFRS 9, see description above. VIS B 75 A5 4E R 2B 955 if B
R Xt o
Subsequent to the initial recognition, loans and RANIETERE - ERRERK

receivables were subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

AFS and financial assets at FVPL were subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value are recognised as follows:

e  for 'financial assets at FVPL' — in profit or loss
within “other gains/(loss) — net”.

e  for AFS that are monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency — translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost of the
security were recognised in profit or loss and other
changes in the carrying amount were recognised in
other comprehensive income.

e  for other monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as AFS — in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HRE B REK MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11Financial assets (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

U]

(i)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is
determined are disclosed in Note 3.3.

When securities classified as AFS were sold, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other
comprehensive income were reclassified to profit or loss
as release of investment reserve upon disposal of AFS.

Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting period
whether there was objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets was impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets was
impaired and impairment losses were incurred only if
there was objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) had an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that could be reliably estimated. In the case of
equity investments classified as AFS, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost was considered an indicator that the assets are
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss was
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that had not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
was reduced and the amount of the loss was recognised
in profit or loss. If a loan had a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
was the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group could
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11Financial assets (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Impairment (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreased and the decrease could be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in
Note 3.1(b).

Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there was objective evidence of impairment for
AFS, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — was removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were
recognised in profit or loss were not reversed through
profit or loss in a subsequent period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as AFS
increased in a subsequent period and the increase could
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss was reversed through profit or loss.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUHERKRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2 FERFHBRBE2)
2.13Inventories 213 7FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.14Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Group's
accounting for trade receivables and impairment policies are
disclosed in Note 2.11.

2.15Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.17 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

All borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HRE B REK MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2 FERFHBRBE2)
218 EHREL BT (&)
(b) EZEFTEH

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liabilities where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.20Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans
in Hong Kong and China. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or trustee-
administered funds. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

e  excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUHERKRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Equity-settled share-based payment

(c)

transactions (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

When the options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company's
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.21Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22Revenue recognition

(a)

(b)

Sales of merchandise

Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered, as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due. Substantially all of the Group’s revenue are
recognised at a point in time during the year.

Deposits collected from the customers before product delivery
are recognised as contract liabilities.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HRE B REK MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2 FERFHBRBE2)

2.22Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.2 W AR (&)

(c) Management fees income

Management fees income is recognised over time as
management service is rendered.

(d) Handling income

Handling income is recognised when the Group satisfied the
performance obligation in accordance with the substance of
relevant agreements. Invoices are generated and revenue is
recognised at that point in time.

(e) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the relevant leases.

2.23 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue
before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed
for expected credit losses in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 3.1(b) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised. For a single contract with
the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

2.24 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.25Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability
at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured
at fair value and subsequently at the higher of

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of
the investment.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, as appropriate.

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are deferred and credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBERKRMEE

2 FESTHEMES)
2.25 B IR

MBEREHONELERBERSVBA
& - ZBETRARFERNE - BREA
TH-—FEPERSEFE

o REFBVHHREERFENR ZAM
FEEREABEZEHE &

o VpERZEBRIER)REE
B E LR FE155% 2 RAFER
ZRFRAZE

FBERZAFERBEBEIAERZA
MNKRERBERZIBERTHERZ M
Ao RAEZEEMRE =T XN 2
CHZEREREEZHE2REET

INERARE R Rl 2 B E M BN IR 2
ERENRETREM - AIARFEARR
RTEVERRRERRNES

2.26 RE DR

AARRRRD RS REBERSEARRT]
PR E S (ER) e HRN A EE
RARBIMEHRRERSEE -

2.27 BT B

L0 6 TR M AR 3 IR 4R B S R URER - T
AEEBSTE MBS REE - BUTR
HEFRE S IR E AP EBEAAR °

BB # BE R ARR AT - 3 B E AR
ERENKAEHEMFERRARGE R
T s R P R o

EY - RPN AR 1A B 2 IR R B S A
BT - W AREE < HAFHAERE
KA 2HRER T HER -

£ 20182019 111 m+tsmgerewas



FT '.1‘\‘\”‘ nk | u'll“ | \H\'IML‘-WJ” “\.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BF R ¥R AR M 5T

=
o)

3

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk

0]

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and China
with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollars (“USD"). The
Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they
relate.

In order to mitigate the foreign currency risk, the Group
has been closely monitoring its foreign currency exposure
and requirements and will arrange for any foreign
exchange forward contracts if necessary. There was no
outstanding foreign exchange forward contract as at 31
March 2019 and 2018.

At 31 March 2019, if HKD/USD had weakened/
strengthened by 2% (2018: 2%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been approximately HK$44,000 (2018:
HK$315,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on net impact on translation of
RMB-denominated net monetary assets of subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and HKD/USD-denominated net monetary
assets of subsidiaries in China.

Price risk

The Group's investment bonds, listed securities and
investment fund are susceptible to market price risk
arising from uncertainties about future prices of those
financial assets at FVOCI and FVPL. Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles. Management
considered that the exposure of investment bonds,
listed securities and investment fund to price risk is not
significant.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities except for certain bank deposits, the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group generally does not use financial derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
resulted from the changes in interest rates on interest-
bearing assets.

(b) Credit risk

)

Risk management

The credit risk of the Group's financial assets, which
mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and contract assets, other receivables, and
financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI, arises from potential
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, substantially all cash and
bank deposits are placed with major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and China which management
believes are of high credit quality. Management does not
expect any losses arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The credit risk of debtors is managed by a credit
evaluation process which includes assessment and
evaluation of existing and potential customers’ credit
standing to determine the credit limits to be granted,
credit policies, credit control and collection procedures.
Payments are monitored for compliance with credit
terms.

Credit risk of FVPL and FVOCI is considered minimal.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
and contract assets have been grouped based on similar
risk characteristics and, collectively or individually
assessing them for likelihood of recovery. The contract
assets have substantially the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts.
The Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

The Group categorises its trade receivables and contract
assets, except those individually assessed, based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 36 month before
31 March 2019 or 1 April 2018 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables and contract assets.

Given the track record of regular repayment of trade
receivables, the directors are of the opinion that the
risk of default by these customers is not significant,
taking into account forward-looking information on
macroeconomics factors. Therefore, expected credit loss
rate of trade receivables is assessed to be insignificant.

For trade receivables relating to accounts in which
there are objective evidence that the debtor faces
significant financial difficulties or enter liquidation, they
are assessed individually for impairment allowance.
Accordingly, loss allowance of HK$2,375,000 was made
as at 31 March 2019.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade
receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables was
assessed based on the incurred loss model. Individual
receivables which were known to be uncollectible were
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. The
other receivables were assessed collectively to determine
whether there was objective evidence that impairment
has been incurred but not yet been identified in a
separate provision for impairment. The Group considered
that there was evidence of impairment if any of the
following indicators were present:

e  significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

e  probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation; and

e default or late payments.

Receivables for which an impairment provision was
recognised were written off against the provision when
there was no expectation of recovering additional cash.

Debt instruments

All of the entity's debt instruments at FVOCI are
considered to have low credit risk. Instruments are
considered to be low credit risk when they have a low
risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The credit quality of other receivables has been assessed
with reference to historical information about the
counterparties’ default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The directors are of the opinion that the
credit risk of other receivables is low due to the sound
collection history of the receivables due from them.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of other receivables
is assessed to be close to zero and no provision was
made as of 31 March 2019.
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B # Rk M &t
Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MBEBERE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 EMERE)
(c) Liquidity risk () REHERR
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining HENTDUERKREEREERTE
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of WIRERAERZES  BBDA®
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit EEMECENEEHEEES M
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to B NEEMSRFE - ERHEBEE
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group B ERZEME  HASERS
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed FRECABNAIREERERTE
credit lines available. BHEEM
The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the REERFBEFAEERBREEE
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity BE EXRRAEZRBDESERE
structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and ZEELREX  ABEREZHERHE
commitments of the Group. The Group also maintains a T REBETNERBDEE RS &GS
healthy level of liquid assets and committed banking facilities HIRTTE ERERFRBEKF
to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet NHERAERHRESREMNEMBE
any unexpected and material cash requirements in the EBARTPRNERRERZE
ordinary course of business. At 31 March 2019, the Group has &= E o R20195F3A318 - X &
unutilised committed banking facilities of HK$160,600,000 ZARBAEARBNRITEEREE
(2018: HK$160,600,000). 7/%160,600,0007% 7T (2018 : 160,600,000
BIT) e
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities, TERAOMAEBZHBEE AR
the remaining periods of which at the end of the reporting EHRAERBEENIBMBZHAT
period to the contractual maturity date are within 12 months. HERNEARN - RPABEESHE
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual READRBBRBFERE ©
undiscounted cash flows.
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
Trade and other payables FEN BB R E A R FRIE 187,577 218,259

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total equity, including
share capital, other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group was at the net cash
position.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of the Group's assets and liabilities are classified into
3 levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy prescribed under
the accounting standards and disclosed as below:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2019.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R 2R £E38] w@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets &E
Financial assets at FVPL BAFEFAERZ
& E
— Listed equity securities and — EmkREZSF R
investment fund KEES 2,109 - - 2,109
Financial assets at FVOCI BAVEGFAEMEE
Weas 2 BE R & B
— Corporate bonds —hERES - 3,979 - 3,979
Total #Et 2,109 3,979 - 6,088
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group's financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2018.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ENE EVES EEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVPL BAFESAERZZ
5B E
— Listed equity securities and —FTREZFFR
investment fund HEES 2,145 - - 2,145
AFS A EMBEE
— Corporate bonds —EEH - 3,928 - 3,928
Total 15 2,145 3,928 - 6,073
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets NERTEEEZ ST E(MMARES
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for- ZHETEREE RO HEE Mﬁ)ZQ
sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the statement of T EAMERIRLEEANTERE - &K
financial position date. The quoted market price used for financial EE MR EEMBAZTE iﬁ{ﬁtﬁg i
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. BAE-
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in ERERTEEEZ2SB T E(FWEIN
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is PTETE) 2 AFEBELNFEREHAERMNE
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety T o ANEBFERZERE - WENRREH
of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market RKEEZTRAELRE - EHEBIEH

conditions existing at the end of the reporting period. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash
flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

There was no transfer of financial assets between Level 1 and Level
2 during the year.

BUSBMITATEREXRZHEHRE -
EEESES BT AR FERRIEREMR
My GUNfAEtRAR IS RE

NEEFRBEURY IS EE 2 HI E
8% o
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an assessment
of the realisability of inventories. Provisions are recognised where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of inventories may not be realised. The identification of provision
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and provision for inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated loss allowance for trade receivables

The loss allowances for trade receivables are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, and
related depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment and
land use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

119
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EXEROE RERA T XML -

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

TR

AEEREFEERM A EELEER
B —BEHBELEABERNRERTIFELZ
RREIME I BER BE B IR B RE SR 1848 - Al 8
R EELHE kAR - ERMNCSBE
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HEBZHER - SRR EFE ZREER
FE 2B -
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BERZBREE - REREHR - AEE
EELZERRIERBREFENBAR
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AR ISR M FE3(b) ©

M BERRBEZERFH

AEEEEEETENE BELARBZ
BEr A ERERRERTERR - HETD
REBUMERBEZME  BERRE
ERERFHBEREBEL - ERES
RERIBBGRE et 2 FHER L NI E
B - HFMEESMBE RES L E 2 &
MRERIFERMIUEEE - ERQEFHA
REEMAE A EAFEHIR - EHNEHSE
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Management judgement is required in asset impairment review
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset is less than the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) whether
appropriate key assumptions are applied in preparing cash flow
projections including using an appropriate discount rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in the impairment
assessment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's financial position and results of operations. If there
is a significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to charge
an impairment loss to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management expects it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available to utilise against the
temporary differences or tax losses. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets in the period in which
such estimates have been changed.

Provision for withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries is subject to
management’s estimates that the Company controls the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries.

D

4 ERESFHEFTRHE 2

(d)

(e)

FMBEEREE)
EERENETEEREHE - FRIRT
(I REEFHBRLERTNEREEERE

AR AU E ¢ ()R BEERMEDRA
WEeHE - A FEREHEERRRER
EBLERFEREEMEESRELRS

,,HJE’jIEE FEE BWER=E ¢ Kiii)

CHERIERSABARKAEENEER
® o BREEREENTRE  REN AR
EREFMEAREZZEE  BREREESRE
E‘Jﬁ'ﬁﬁiﬁrji‘ﬁrfﬁjm —Jiﬁiﬁlws
BEEFHIREREE  AMEE2A%

BEOMBIRR R EEEE - Tﬁ%?ﬁ/ﬂﬂﬁfﬁ
REYHMBRASRBUNEEKRNTME

N - AIERAESA ZEKERIIZRE
B8
Fri&®t

REBRZERDEERBEBNAEN - R
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Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM") has been identified
as the executive directors. CODM reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

CODM assesses the performance of the business from a product
perspective, i.e. by headsets and headphones, and accessories and
components.

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
segment results before corporate expenses, other gains and losses,
finance income and costs.

Revenue between segments is carried out in accordance with the terms
mutually agreed by the respective parties. The revenue from external
parties is derived from numerous external customers and is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

T T P

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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7 EHER
IBEEBRRA(NEIEEERRANEREE
BRTEER - TELERRARERHAKE
ZABBENFEEERRLBUDOEER °
EEENREZEREETLEDH

IRLEBRRANERAE(NBKEREF
SEERERMRTH)FEEBRA
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KRB BERELTBRELEIH - HKRER
B8 - BERARKA

2 B ATIIRIRAT K 77 — B 56 2 1R
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e EHRRME
5 Segment information (Continued) 5 oMERE)
Headsets and Accessories and
headphones components Elimination Total
BRERREEEH B4 REH it @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Segment revenue AEUA
- External revenue —HIMEA 1,077,404 914502 334391 311,619 - - 1,411,795 1,226,121
- Inter-segment revenue - EEBA - - 46,675 41,633 (46,675  (41,633) - =
Total Wt 1,077,404 914,502 381,066 353,252 (46,675) (41,633) 1,411,795 1,226,121
Segment results DEELE 21,294 27,101 62,619 60,995 - - 83,913 88,096
Corporate expenses TEIH (7,943) (5.812)
Other gains/(losses) — net  Eftillizs /(E5#8)
— ¥ 8,046 (15,973)
Finance income - net BEWA—F8 4,572 3,278
Profit before income tax B ETER AR 88,588 69,589

Other segment information: ~ E {9 2EH
Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment HEZE 22,109 21,744 8,887 8,927 - - 30,996 30,671

Amortisation of land use T FRE 2 8
rights 159 161 - - - - 159 161

Provision/(reversal of RERE/(RE)
provision) for inventory
obsolescence 7,009 13,165 (876) 43 - - 6,133 13,208

Provision/(reversal of EYNEZRE
provision) for impairment BfE/ (B#)
of trade receivables 871 (2,123) - 18 - - 871 (2,105)

Additions to non-current EREEEE N
assets (other than financial  (B&RITAR
instruments and deferred BILFTEHT
income tax assets) BEN) 34,773 17,935 10,558 8,157 - - 45,331 26,092
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Segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019, revenues of approximately
HK$1,038,684,000 (2018: HK$770,448,000) were derived from three
(2018: three) customers, amounted to approximately HK$378,735,000,
HK$344,853,000 and HK$315,096,000 respectively, which individually
accounted for over 10% of the Group's total revenue. These revenues
of approximately HK$768,003,000 (2018: HK$527,414,000) and
HK$270,681,000 (2018: HK$243,034,000) were attributable to headsets
and headphones segment and accessories and components segment
respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. Revenue from external
customers attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 31 March 2019
was approximately HK$1,296,210,000 (2018: HK$1,089,993,000), and
the total revenue from external customers from China was approximately
HK$115,585,000 (2018: HK$136,128,000).

At 31 March 2019, the total non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong and
China were approximately HK$28,121,000 (2018: HK$26,186,000) and
HK$124,412,000 (2018: HK$119,986,000) respectively.

T T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBERKRMEE

DEERE)

H £2019F3831H IE F F © %J1,038,684,000
75702018 © 770,448,000/ 7T) 2 WA TR B =
#(2018 : =HR)EF + 9 BI#1/5378,735,0007%
JT ~ 344,853,0007% 7T %315,096,0008 ¢ - & B
(AN BB U A10%0A & - E A #7768,003,000
7 7C(2018 : 527,414,000 7T ) £2.270,681,0007%
70(2018 : 243,034,000/ 7T ) 7 5l A& K B # &
SEERSBERHRIHSBIWA -

ARARIABBREN - BE2019F3 318 IEF
EREEEZEHINE P WAL A1,296,210,000
7570(2018 1 1,089,993,000/87T) © MREFE 2~
HINE P UL ALBEEL) £5115,585,00078 7T (2018 -
136,128,000/ 7T ) ©

M2019F3H31H » e TR RELEFTFH
BEN MRABERFRAZIERDEERES
A 49 £28,121,0007% 7T.(2018 : 26,186,000 7T )
1%124,412,0007% 7T (2018 : 119,986,00058 7T ) °
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6 Property, plant and equipment 6 M- - BMERRKE

Leasehold Furniture

land and Machinery and Motor

buildings and moulds equipment vehicles Total

HELi B B

kT REA REW "E Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2017 RH2017F4818
Cost A 165,413 201,970 125,253 18,699 511,335
Accumulated depreciation ZETHITE (80,711) (171,576) (112,019) (16,648) (380,954)
Net book amount REFE 84,702 30,394 13,234 2,051 130,381
Year ended 31 March 2018 EZ2018%3H31H
LEE
Opening net book amount FHRAEFE 84,702 30,394 13,234 2,051 130,381
Additions ER 174 16,964 9,773 292 27,203
Disposals HE - (291) 0 (104) (396)
Depreciation charge TERX (6,147) (15,107) (8,233) (1,184) (30,671)
Exchange differences fERER 6,627 3,603 1,066 85 11,381
Closing net book amount FRERFE 85,356 35,563 15,839 1,140 137,898
At 31 March 2018 ®2018%3A31H
Cost DN 180,306 233,847 140,635 18,721 573,509
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (94,950) (198,284) (124,796) (17,581) (435,611)
Net book amount REFE 85,356 35,563 15,839 1,140 137,898
Year ended 31 March 2019 HZ2019F3A31A0
LEE

Opening net book amount FERmFEE 85,356 35,563 15,839 1,140 137,898
Additions R 3,029 24,625 11,616 3,769 43,039
Disposals HE - (54) (20) - (74)
Depreciation charge TERY (6,037) (16,110) (7,690) (1,159) (30,996)
Exchange differences b =58 (4,202) (2,230) (930) (63) (7,425)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 78,146 41,794 18,815 3,687 142,442
At 31 March 2019 #2019F3H31H
Cost %N 173,680 229,120 140,925 19,009 562,734
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE (95,534) (187,326) (122,110) (15,322) (420,292)
Net book amount REFE 78,146 41,794 18,815 3,687 142,442
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$23,359,000 (2018: HK$22,346,000) has been
included in cost of sales and HK$7,637,000 (2018: HK$8,325,000) in
general and administrative expenses.

At 31 March 2019, the Group's interests in leasehold land at net book
value of HK$10,633,000 (2018: HK$11,010,000) is located in Hong Kong
and held on leases between 10 to 50 years.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBERKRMEE

ME - - BERREZ)

Hr £ B9 223,359,00078 7T (2018 : 22,346,000/
TC) B AR 8 & AN 527,637,000 7T (2018 ¢
8,325,000/870) EM AR — M EITH X »

201938318 + ANEBEABREF{E10,633,000
77 (2018 ¢ 11,010,000 T ) 2 FHE L ih 2 4%
SR BB LA0ES0FEFRLIEE -

Investment property REWEE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year FH 1,200 1,050
Fair value gains (Note 22) AN E W (B FE22) 200 150
End of the year FIR 1,400 1,200

For the year ended 31 March 2019, outgoings in respect of investment
property amounted to HK$4,000 (2018: HK$4,000).

The investment property was revalued at 31 March 2019 by LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer.
Valuation was based on current prices in an active market.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group’s interests in investment property
is wholly located in Hong Kong and held on leases between 10 to 50
years.

Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment property
at least annually. In the current year, the valuation is performed by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuers. At the end of each reporting period, the directors update their
assessment of the fair value of the property, taking into account the most
recent independent valuations. The directors determine a property’s value
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar investment properties. Where such information is not available the
directors consider information from a variety of sources including:

(i)  Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted
to reflect those differences;

(ii) Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows; or

(iii) Capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated

net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an
analysis of market evidence.

£ 20182019 125
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EAGEMFISETAEMAR A FHTER - 4
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720194 20183 A31H » KEENIKE Y
X2 ETEHEMREB R 0E50F B L#H
ﬁ °

HERE%E

AEBEEIRNEFREREVEZBILGEE -
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7 Investment property (Continued) 7 REWE#®)
Valuation basis (Continued) REEEE)
The valuation gain is included in “Other gains/(losses) — net” in the HERERGEE2ERERI ks (&
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 22). 8) —FR 7R (MFE22) -
The following table analyses the investment property carried at fair value TEREHAGEFZ D Z2EATFEARZIESE
by valuation method: MEZ I
Fair value hierarchy AFEER

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2019 using

R2019F3 8318 2 A EFEMEA

Quoted prices in Significant other Significant
active markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEERNETRE HMEETHE EZFATHE
miEZHRE WAE BAE
(B14R) (%E28) (%#34%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value measurements A& A FEE
— Car park space — (=85 = 1,400 -

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2018 using

RK2018F3 A31H 2 A EFEMHEA

Quoted prices in Significant
active markets for  Significant other unobservable
identical assets observable inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HREERERE HEtNEZAEHR FEERAEE
M52 I8 A B BAE
(B18) (828 (F3%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value measurements 4<% M AFEE
— Car park space — (=85 - 1,200 -
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of AEEZBERBREMEEE B BERRES]
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in BEBE - THEAATEERZEBARED -
circumstances that caused the transfer.
There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. RER - BHEEVR - 55244 N 5534 2 T -
Level 2 fair values of investment property has been derived using the REMEZRIBR AT EEREELRGE
direct comparison approach, which is based on comparing the property BT A ik (B 990 55 B2 B R 5 2 B 3 b [ L At A
to be valued directly with other comparable properties in close proximity, LEEB Y EEITEELLR o

which have recently transacted.
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Land use rights

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
o)

8 tTifFAHE

b 3% SR AR M 5

AREBR T E Az B RIANEEHOM

payments and their net book value are analysed as follows: HEHBREFEITAT :
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year F 1] 4,316 4,047
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments  #f$4 78 &AL FIAE
(Note 23) (MiE23) (159) (161)
Exchange differences M N =5 (278) 430
End of the year FIR 3,879 4,316
Available-for-sale financial assets 9 AHEEMEEE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year =) 3,928 4,116
Reclassification to FVOCI on adoption of HKFRS 9 FARAN 4 Bl 53R 15 22 A1 55 957 B
(Note 10) BN BEE A FERAEM
EHRENIMEEE (H3E10) (3,928) =
Disposals H&E - (183)
Fair value losses transferred to other comprehensive % &= H ith 2 Ez5 2 A FE
income (Note 20) [E518 (F5E20) = (25)
Release of reserve upon disposal during the year FRLHERARR ZFE
(Note 20) (FfFEE20) - 20
End of the year F 4R - 3,928

At 31 March 2018, the Group's AFS represented investment bonds.
The fair value of the investment bonds were based on their current bid
price in an active market provided by counterparties. The AFS were
denominated in USD. None of these financial assets was either past due

or impaired.

3 2018/2019
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e M RRME

10 Financial assets at fair value through other 10
comprehensive income

BAVEFAHMZEKVRENTH
EE

2019

HK$'000

Beginning of the year F1 =
Reclassification from AFS on adoption of HKFRS 9 PN E B IEREEREIE G

(Note 9) A EMBEESH O E () 3,928
Fair value gains transferred to other comprehensive EEEHMEER G2 AT ERE

income (Note 20) (BfEE20) 51

End of the year FRR 3,979

At 31 March 2019, the Group's financial assets at FVOCI represented
investment bonds. The fair value of the investment bonds were based on
their current bid price in an active market provided by counterparties. The
financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in USD. None of these financial
assets was either past due or impaired.

11 Subsidiaries 11
(a) Principal subsidiaries

The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

201938318 » ASERAFEGT AEAM
2AREZHMBEERIREES: - ZSKRERE
FZAFEDRER S FREBENERT
BZBEAEBME - MAFEFAHEME2E RS
BB ENETE ZEMBEETES
HARORE o

B 2 F)
(a) EEKMEBAT
TRAERRDTN2019F3H318 2 F ZHt

March 2019: BRE]:
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of  Kind of legal Class of issued share Interest
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital held (iii)
EMARIE, B&f
£ TELEHY HRERNE  FEER iR 6 &5 BAE AR
Charter Media Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and trading of ~ Ordinary shares  HK$5,000,000 100%
company electro-acoustic products and
accessories
PEBRAF BB BREEAR REARUREESZERREM L@R 500000057 100%
Charter Media (Dongguan) ~ China Wholly owned ~ Manufacture of electro-acoustic Ordinary shares  HK$190,000,000 100%
Company Limited (i) foreign products and accessories
enterprise
PE(RR)ETFAR hE NEZERE RETBERRES @ik 190,000,000 100%
~l() 33
Dongguan Full Rich China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of Ordinary shares  HK$11,000,000 100%
Precision Metal Products foreign precision metal parts
Company Limited (i) enterprise
REERFTLEHES TE NEZERE REREERELERM @& 11,000,008 100%
BRAF) 133
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11 Subsidiaries (continued) 11 WBAR @)
(a) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FEMBAE (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of  Kind of legal Class of issued share Interest
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital held (iii)
SMAL Y BRI
£ TELEHH EEERME TEER FrsRGER BAFE PR
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) British Virgin Islands ~ Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares US§3,000 100%
Limited (iii) company
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) ~ HEEELHE BREERR REER LRk 3,000%7T 100%
Limited (jii)
Fujikon Industrial Company Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Design, manufacture, marketing and Class A HK$2,400,000 -
Limited company trading of electro-acoustic products  (non-voting)
and accessories (iv)
ErREFARAH Bk BREARE R HE EEREESEER AE 2,400,000 7T =
REf (BREE)()
Class B HK$600,000 100%
(voting) (iv)
B 600,00078 70 100%
(BRERE)(v)
Fujikon International Hong Kong Limited liability  Investment holding Ordinary shares HK$3 100%
Limited company
ELRERERAT BE BEREERA  REBR ERR 3BT 100%
Fujikon Packing Material ~ Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and manufacture  Ordinary shares HK$10,000 51%
Company Limited company and trading of packaging materials
ELROEMNERLR BE BREMRR RARRARBEREEOEMH ERR 10,0007 7T 51%
Fujikon Precision Metal Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and manufacture  Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100%
Products Limited company and trading of precision metal parts
ErakEnedn 3 BREEAR REERIREEREERZNS LBk 10,000 70 100%
BRAT Feft
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REUHERKRMEE
11 Subsidiaries (Continued) 11 MEARE)
(@) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FEMBEAR (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of  Kind of legal Class of issued share Interest
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital held (iii)
HMRIE, B&f
£ TELEHY HERERNE FEER iR 0 85 RAFE  FEER)
Full-Sound (Dongguan) China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of electro-  Ordinary shares  HK$19,400,000 100%
Electrical Products foreign acoustic products and accessories
Limited (ii) enterprise
BB(RZ)ERLM P NEAZERE REREEESREMREN @R 19,400,000 100%
BREAR) A
Keen Motion Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Provision of management services  Ordinary shares HKS2 100%
company
BRBERRA Bk BEREMRAR REERRHB gl 2R 100%
Landbo Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Property holding Ordinary shares HK$100 100%
company
URERAF EE BREARRE WERA Lak 1007 100%
Maxchief Enterprises Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and trading of ~ Ordinary shares HK$150 100%
Limited company electro-acoustic products and
accessories
BRLZERAA & BREARR REBRARBESBEMREH LEmk 1507 100%
Profits (Dongguan) Electric  China Wholly owned Dormant Ordinary shares  HK$5,410,000 100%
Products Company foreign
Limited enterprise
BE(RZ)EHHM FE HEZERE EBEERH LER 541000087 100%
BRAR i1
AudiKom Technik Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares HKS2 100%
company
BN RERAT B BREMARR  REEMK ERR VETC 100%
Smart Success Management  British Virgin Islands ~ Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares Us$100 100%
Limited company
Smart Success Management &R X # & EREARR RERRK LR 100 7T 100%
Limited
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11 Subsidiaries (Continued) 11 WEARE)
(a) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) XEMBAR (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of  Kind of legal Class of issued share Interest
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital held (iii)
BMRLLE B&f
£ TELEHY HERERNE IEER iR 685 RAFE  FRERN)
Dong Guan Fortune Packing China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of Ordinary shares ~ HK$34,000,000 51%
Products Company foreign packaging materials
Limited (i) enterprise
REEXBEHERER TE NE2EREE REREEARMH L@ 34,000,000 T 51%
2 Al() g3
Qin Zhou Fortune Packing  China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of Ordinary shares RMB500,000 51%
Products Company foreign packaging materials
Limited (i) enterprise
FNEERERRER NERERE REREESEMH LER  500,000ARE 51%
2 A(i) %
Notes: BT

(b)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Charter Media (Dongguan) Company Limited, Dongguan Full Rich
Precision Metal Products Company Limited, Dong Guan Fortune Packing
Products Company Limited and Qin Zhou Fortune Packing Products
Company Limited are wholly foreign owned enterprises established
in China to be operated for 35 years up to May 2029, 17 years up to
October 2021, 25 years up to November 2024 and 20 years up to July
2034, respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, Full-Sound (Dongguan) Electrical Products
Limited, a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in China, was
under deregistration progress.

The shares of Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited are held directly by the
Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Holders of Class A (non-voting) shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends unless the net profit of the company exceeds
HK$900,000,000,000, and are not entitled to any distribution upon
winding up unless a sum of HK$900,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the Company to holders of Class B (voting) shares.

Material non-controlling interests

As at 31 March 2019, the total non-controlling interests were
HK$61,763,000 (2018: HK$54,822,000), solely representing their
interests in Fujikon Packing Material Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries,
namely Dong Guan Fortune Packing Products Company Limited and
Qin Zhou Fortune Packing Products Company Limited (the “FPC
Group”).
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(b)

() FH(Ex) ETARAR RxaEERR
ﬁiﬁqunﬁﬁﬁ'«&? REBXBEEERER
AR RFNEEBEYGFERAREHER
PEKY 2N EBALE ZEOER
D B4 A35F 2029455 8 179 22021410

H 254 22024411 A 20422034477 ©

201943 A31H - BB (RZ)EHRMEMH
BRAR(RHFBEKZZIEZERE R
%) IEHEITRE ©

(iii)  Fujikon Industrial (BVI) LimitedZ A% {5 Fa 7%
REIEERE HtB AR 2RHH
WRERA °

AE(EREZR)ROFE AL ERERE
IEREEIRR S - RIEARRARMFER
900,000,000,00078 7T, + B 75 52 b S &
BEE 2K - B FE900,000,000,00078 7T 2
BEEHAARDIRTBE(EIRERE) K
BIFAA °

(iv)

ERFFEHIEER

MR2019F3A318 - JEERIMERLE R
61,763,000 7T (2018 : 54,822,0005% 7T ) -
BRENEIEEDRERA R KEHK
BRA IREEXREEUAFRAE KL
PNEEeRIRERAT([Emes
VIR B ) 2 s o

RER A A
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11 Subsidiaries (Continued) 11 MEBAR®)
(b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) ERFEFIMERE)
Set out below are the summarised financial information for FPC TR ETEREEMNEEEEBASE
Group that has non-controlling interests that are material to the EER RGN R MBEERRHE -
Group.
Summarised statement of financial position HMBERARBE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets ERBEE 23,026 24,871
Current assets MEVEE 159,543 130,738
Current liabilities mEEE (56,521) (43,727)
Net assets BEFE 126,048 111,882
Summarised income statement W REE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 343,201 308,696
Profit before income tax R FT1S B4 Bl & A 69,927 60,946
Income tax expenses Frf3 i i (11,809) (12,455)
Profit for the year F N A 58,118 48,491
Other comprehensive income Efth 2 (3,952) 6,238
Total comprehensive income ZEWHERE 54,166 54,729
Total comprehensive income allocated to e E I FI R R A
non-controlling interests ZHER AR 26,541 26,817
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests IRAST T FEFE I M 25 Y
[ieEN 19,600 19,600
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RE B HRERME
11 Subsidiaries (Continued) 11 WEARE)
(b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) ERFEFMERE)
Summarised cash flows RenEmeE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net cash generated from operating activities KESEB TS 2 IRE FEE 37,304 52,577
Net cash used in investing activities REESMA RS TR (7,440) (7,761)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEBFTA RS TR (40,000) (40,000)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BeRREEEWORD)
equivalents AN FEER (10,136) 4,816
Exchange differences on cash and cash ReRkBRCEEMENZH
equivalents (843) 678
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FEVIRERBEESZEED
the year 54,492 48,998
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FHRIBERIREGEEY 43,513 54,492
12 Inventories 12 #E
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials B 136,038 128,856
Work-in-progress EE R 104,016 62,479
Finished goods SR R 73,822 45,776
313,876 237,111
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost BRAEXE R AHERAZTFEXARLN R
of sales amounted to approximately HK$1,147,959,000 (2018: 1,147,959,0007% 7T(2018 : 965,169,0007% 7T ) °
HK$965,169,000). For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group has HZE219F3A3MBIEFE - AEEELZR
made a net provision for inventory obsolescence of approximately B F 5 456,133,000 7T (2018 ¢ 13,208,000
HK$6,133,000 (2018: HK$13,208,000). BIT) °
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5P 35 R AR T

Trade and other receivables

The Group grants credit periods to customers ranging from 7 to 120
days. At 31 March 2019, trade receivables of HK$221,318,000 (2018:
HK$194,989,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These related to a
number of independent customers for whom there was no relevant history
of default. The amount of the provision was HK$2,375,000 as of 31
March 2019 (2018: HK$2,352,000).

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables by past due date is as
follows:

D —

13 BRERKREtEKFRIEA

NEBBRTFEEIEI208 2ZEH - 120194
38318 - JE U E 221,318,000/ 7T (2018 :
194,989,000 JT ) I 8 B KB B - 32 F
HEHEETUYEABEBRERCHENEBELER
FEBM- B E2019F38318 ELEA
2,375,000 7T (2018 : 2,352,000 7T ) °

AR EZ BRERZRESTOT

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

Current = HA 221,318 194,989
1 to 30 days 1230H 20,968 15,909
31 to 60 days 31£60H 11,894 9,893
61 to 90 days 61290H 2,164 3,780
Over 90 days 908 A 4,257 6,113
260,601 230,684

Less: Loss allowance for trade receivables B R E R SR RE (2,375) (2,352)
Trade receivables — net FEER—F5E 258,226 228,332
Other receivables H b fE N FAE 39,149 30,005
297,375 258,337

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. This has not resulted in a significant change to the loss
allowance of trade receivables as at 1 April 2018. Note 3.1(b) sets out
the details about the calculation of the allowance.

A ER B B WS R R L At B W R R 2 BRI B R E
RFERE -

AEBREAESVBREENFSRBLT =
ATEMARKERCESREERE  EFRE
HATEHAE IR S o R2018F4A1H » B AE
BERERSEREEEERNRL - BERE
STER BRI 3. (b)
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REUBERKRMEE

13 BRERKREtEKRE

RIE ()

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivable balances 7 E5 [ JE S SR B H th FE MR GRIE A5 B2 BR TE B A
are denominated in the following currencies: THEEF K

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
HKD BT 7,566 7,035
RMB AR 53,289 48,241
usD e 236,520 203,061
297,375 258,337

The closing loss allowance for all trade receivables reconcile to the

MBERBERFREBRBRBERFVNERERL

opening loss allowance are as follows: HERWOT -
HK$'000
Loss allowance as at 1 April 2017 under HKAS 39 RIEE S &1 4RI F395E7020174F
ARV EEEE 4,565
Reversal of loss allowance for trade receivables FEUN & 30 7 B 18 B 4 o] 8% (2,105)
Receivables written off as uncollectible AR [E] 2 e U R IR i 5H (113)
Exchange differences VE R ZE%R 5
Loss allowance as at 31 March 2018 under RIEE BT ER53958 1120184
HKAS 39 and 1 April 2018 under HKFRS 9 3A31 A RIRBEEE M HHmE %L
F95RMN2018F4 A1 B 2 BERE 2,352
Loss allowance for trade receivables R E R 2 ES1aEE 871
Receivables written off as uncollectible AATUYLE] 7 8 W R TR i 5H (848)
Loss allowance as at 31 March 2019 under RIEE S B 1S RS YE R 58957 722019
HKFRS 9 F3IA3NA 2 EERE 2,375

As at 31 March 2019, trade receivables from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 77.4% (2018: 81.4%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group's approach of managing credit risk is disclosed in

Note 3.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, other receivables are not considered

impaired and have no relevant history of default.

3 2018/2019
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REMIERERMEE

14 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14 RAFEF ABEZNHMBEEE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Listed equity securities and investment fund FTTREZSFREEES 2,109 2,145
The fair value of all equity securities and investment fund at fair value BRAFEIENEIREZERREREEZA
is based on their current bid prices in an active market. Financial assets TEIEEEEERMERITZEREET -
at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the following BAFEFABIENHIEEEN T BT
currencies: A -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
HKD T 1,266 1,296
RMB AR® 843 849
2,109 2,145
15 Cash and cash equivalents 15 RERBEEEY
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$’'000
Cash at bank and on hand RITFERRR S 243,937 188,073
Short-term bank deposits 5 EIRITIF 3K 19,200 220,560
263,137 408,633
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was approximately EHRTERERANRY AE5F1.6/2(2018 :
1.6% (2018: 2.1%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity 21E) - ZEHFEHFHEHHE A3H (2018 : 14
of 3 days (2018: 14 days). H) e
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: REMRESEBEWUA TG
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
HKD BT 8,659 11,640
RMB AR 86,394 175,921
usb e 162,264 216,827
Others HAith 5,820 4,245
263,137 408,633
At 31 March 2019, approximately HK$30,585,000 (2018: HK$45,090,000) R201953A318 + 7 & @ #930,585,000/% T
of the Group's cash and cash equivalents placed with banks in China (2018 : 45,090,000/% 7T ) /7 U 1 BIER 1T 2 B
were denominated in RMB, which is subject to foreign exchange control SRACEEMAARKEIER  MARBZH
regulations of China. B 1N EE 5 1l 5 A8 P BR Al
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16 Trade payables, contract liabilities, accruals and
other payables

As at 31 March 2019, the ageing analysis of trade payables by past due
date is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR

16 ENER XA E BSHEAR
H KR

M2019F3 8310 ' KB HHAECENE
RZEBRRAITT

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

Current = A 139,859 188,881
1 to 30 days 1230H 18,253 3,462
31 to 60 days 31260H 11,276 7,973
61 to 90 days 61£290H 1,382 773
Over 90 days 908 A 2,351 4,579
Trade payables JERTE 173,121 205,668
Accruals and other payables (Note) eS8 A N EL A e A5 kTR (PR 5E) 118,576 100,078
Contract liabilities BREE 7,114 -
298,811 305,746

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables
approximate their fair values.

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year amounted to HK$6,865,000.

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2019, a provision for legal costs (including
professional fees, net of estimated indemnities from insurance claims) of
approximately HK$6.2 million was made in relation to a Market Misconduct
Tribunal (“MMT") case that the Group was involved. Certain of the
professional fees had been made prior to the year end and, as a result, a
provision for legal costs amounting to approximately HK$5.3 million was
included in the Group's accruals and other payables as at 31 March 2019.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, contract liabilities,
accruals and other payables balances are denominated in the following

ANEE 2 N E R E M FE N FR 2 R (A
HAFEREE -

ST AB A B E 2 F )45 #26,865,000/8 L E R
A o

Mz BZE2019F3A3MALEFE  RAKEES 2
MERETABTIE(EREDRMGELZ
FRER(BEEXER  KHBRREZREZ
T RE ) BB 4 56,200,000 7T » & T HE
BERERFREREL - BUR2019F3A318 -
SR PR B 455,300,000 7T B 5F AR E
B2 st B A R E A A FRIE o

AEEZENER aWARE  BHERARHE
AN IR SR 2 FREEIA T E %5

currencies:

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

HKD BIT 62,520 20,782
RMB AR 193,612 220,330
usD = 35,825 64,510
Others HAi 6,854 124
298,811 305,746

£ 20182019 137/
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17 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax

17 BEFEREERER

BEEMGHREAABEERE R ZR R BEAR
RAPEEMKBERBZHEZBGE -

BEEMEHREER B BAEMNBAHIRE EEANH
BIRBER GIER R BIFTT RN LA MR

liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal ERBHER—REE AR - 50 BiE
authority. HH o
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Deferred income tax assets: BEEFTSTAE
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more HEAKRB1218 A 18 Uk =l YR T
than 12 months THIEE E 6,644 5,836
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFTISTAE -
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more 457 #R 381216 B 14 U [B] 493 1T
than 12 months HEAE (2,184) (1,491)
4,460 4,345
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: BELEFTESHRE 2 S8FEOT ¢
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4A1H 4,345 4,086
Deferred income tax credited/(charged) to REAEEERERFETAS
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (32 8H) Z IRIEFTISHL
(Note 25) (PfF5E25) 489 (190)
Exchange differences ME 5, =58 (374) 449
At 31 March M3A31H 4,460 4,345
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17 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities (continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the
year are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BRE KRR

17 BEFREHREERER®

FREREMSHEERAE(ER-RKFE
1R 2 AR IHAT) < BT

Deferred income tax assets Tax losses Provisions and others Total
EEFRSBEE HIEEE BERHA #t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4A1H - 3,196 5,836 2,506 5,836 5,702
Credited/(charged) to RérE 2 E R
consolidated statement of KA
comprehensive income (X $8) - (3,196) 1,182 2,881 1,182 (315)
Exchange differences EHERE - - (374) 449 (374) 449
At 31 March M3A31H = = 6,644 5,836 6,644 5,836
Deferred income tax Accelerated tax Withholding tax on
liabilities depreciation Others unremitted earnings Total
ELFEHARE ERERE Hity RERBF zAMB #t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
At 1 April R4A18 (1,463)  (1,610) (28) (6) = - (1,491) (1,616)
(Charged)/credited to RirE 2HKRE
consolidated statement of R (X)),
comprehensive income A (332) 147 - (22) (361) - (693) 125
At 31 March M3A31H (1,795)  (1,463) (28) (28) (361) - (2,184) (1,491)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of HK$576,000 (2018: HK$7,518,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$3,493,000 (2018: HK$31,266,000) that can be carried
forward against future taxable income with no expiry date. For the year
ended 31 March 2018, loss amounting to HK$27,755,000 will expire in
five years and the remaining amount of HK$3,511,000 has no expiry date.

As at 31 March 2019, deferred income tax liabilities have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on certain
amounts of unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries, as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that no material temporary differences will be reversed in
the foreseeable future.
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18 Share capital 18 IR
2019 2018

Number of Number of

shares shares

RHHE M fn 85 B
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BT R
EiBAR

Beginning of the year FH) 421,067 42,107 420,263 42,026
Exercise of share options during the year FRITEREIE 4,772 477 804 81
End of the year FR 425,839 42,584 421,067 42,107

19

During the year ended 31 March 2019, 4,772,000 shares of HK$0.1
each were issued upon exercise of the share options at an aggregate
consideration of HK$5,249,000. These shares rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares.

Share options

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
which complied with Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”). At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012, an ordinary
resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme. Under the share
option schemes, the Company may grant options to any eligible employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director), any
non-executive director, any shareholder, any supplier and any customer of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest, and any other party having
contributed to the development of the Group to subscribe for shares in
the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.
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19 Share options (Continued) 19 BR#E®)
Movements of share options under the Old Scheme during the year were FREFEBE T 2 ERESBHIT
as follow:
Lapsed/ Lapsed/
Subscription Exercised cancelled Exercised cancelled
Date of price At during during At during during At
grant Exercise period per share  01/04/2017 the year the year  31/03/2018 the year the year  31/03/2019
gk RH017% FREM/  R2018F FREM/  R2019F
REBH &S RBE 4A18 ERTE B 3A31H ERTE B 3A31H
HKS ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
2210512007 22/05/2008 - 1.98 10,800 - 10,800 - - - -
21/05/2017 (i)
28/03/2012  28/03/2013 - 1.10 6,640 166 208 6,266 2,264 = 4,002
27/03/2022 (i)
28/03/2014 - 1.10 6,000 - - 6,000 2,000 - 4,000
27103/2022 (ii)
28/03/2015 - 1.10 3,188 638 428 2,122 508 152 1,462
27103/2022 (iii)
15,828 804 636 14,388 4,772 152 9,464
Notes: P EE -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of
grant.

The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of
grant.

The options were subject to a vesting period of three years from the date of
grant.

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before various
dates during 2019 and 2018 on which the options were exercised were
HK$1.27 and HK$1.45 respectively.

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted were as follows:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

ZEBERARRHEBBES 2 —FRE D
171 -

ZEBREAZR L AR 2 WES B
1 -
ZEBERRARREAHE 2 =FRE D
1 -

720194 20185 « IR MR B % (AR IRET
£ B ATz N FHKRTES B A1.278 T Rk
1.4587T ©

AARROD N EEBIRERHE B ATER AT
FHRERIBZWHENOT

Closing price per share immediately
before the date of grant (HK$)

Date of grant = BERHERAZERUTE(ET)
22 May 2007 200745AH22H 1.95
28 March 2012 201243 A28H 1.10
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e M RRME

19 Share options (Continued) 19 BR#E®)

Notes: (Continued) MsE : (&)

(vi) At 31 March 2019, outstanding options of 9,464,000 were exercisable (2018: (vi) 72019438318 - 9,464,000 (2018 : 14,388,000)
14,388,000). IDRITEIBRRER T1TE -

(vi) The Company has used the Binomial Model for assessing the fair value of (vi) ARFRAZEARATEAREBEREZ D
the share options granted. According to the Binomial Model, the fair value FE - RIBEZIENXNRR - REE20129F3A31H
of the options granted during the year ended 31 March 2012 measured as at IEFER T EREZ AFE(R201243828H
the date of grant of 28 March 2012 was approximately HK$0.273, HK$0.288 B BHEE) S RIK AFR0.273# T © 0.288
and HK$0.294 per share, respectively, taking into account various factors, BITK0298 T - WEFREZERE  BH X
variables and assumptions which include the following: fR&% - B4 :

(i) exercise multiple was applied to the historical information of the () BEEHERITEEE RUAE
option holders, on average, would exercise their options when the # o BRERAEATHRREZEDTE
stock price is 160% of the exercise price; 8,2 160%F5 1T B AR

(i) the risk-free interest rate used was 1.27%; iy FAErEZERBFIEAE1.27E

(iii)  the expected volatility was about 43%; and (i) TEERREREBELE43% K&

(iv)  the expected annual dividend yield of 5.73%. (iv) TERTBFRBWEEAS5.73% -

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously REFBEEARG DBNREESERIEDRE

compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share BETFEAREBZAAINEL -

prices over the last ten years.

As at 31 March 2019, no share options were granted under the New 201963 A318 - BMEBENEREER

Scheme. 7 o
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BRE KRR

20 Other reserves 20 Hitf#E
Property ~ Capital  Statutory Share
Share revaluation  reserve reserve Investment  option  Exchange
premium reserve (i) (ii) reserve  reserve reserve Total
NEER- EXFEE LERE BRE
R EE i (i) (i) RERE wE EXRB @t

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

At 1 April 2017 R2017F4818 112,489 1,041 1,607 3,791 43 10,757 27,082 156,810
Currency translation differences B X %8 - - - - - 40,188 40,188
Fair value losses on available-for- Pt HEM B EE 2

sale financial assets DHEER - - = = (25) = = (25)
Release of investment reserve  tH& AI{ H &I

upon disposal of available-for- EERMERZ

sale financial assets RERRE - - - - 20 - - 20
Employee share option scheme:  1E S fERERT 3 -
— Lapse of share options — R R = - - - - (6457 - (6457
— Proceeds from shares issued ~ —77{E BB AR HE M 2
upon exercise of share TR 2 %
options B 804 - - - - - - 804
— Exercise of share options — TR RE 233 = = = = (233) = =
Appropriation of statutory reserve %% F[#E = = = 399 - - _ 399
At 31 March 2018 M2018%3H31H 113,526 1,041 1,607 4,190 38 4,067 67,270 191,739

Currency translation differences  [E ¢ %258 - - - - - (24,746) (24,746)

Fair value gains on financial ROTFEF AR

assets at FVOCl EHNE 3B
BEZ ATERE = - - - 51 - - 51
Employee share option scheme:  {E BB EATE -
— Lapse of share options —BRELN = = = = = (45) - (45)
~ Proceeds from shares issued  — 47 Bz i B¢
upon exercise of share TRB e
options E0] 4,772 - - - - - = 4,772
- Exercise of share options — TR 1,344 - - - - (1,344) - -
At 31 March 2019 72019638318 119,642 1,000 1,607 4,190 89 2,678 4252 171,11

Notes: FiEE -

(i)  Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of () BAREEBEEAAFABTEERZABERE
the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount of 20004F3 A AN B S AR TR T A BB 2 BB
the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through an AR AR e B A 2 258 -
exchange of shares pursuant to the Group's reorganisation in March 2000.

(i)  Statutory reserve represents general reserve fund required to be set up (i) EEREBEABBTBREZZER/AEENFEZ
pursuant to the laws of China for the Group’s subsidiaries in China. The MEARRIN—RFEEES - —RFEED
general reserve fund can only be used to make up for losses incurred, R FAERmEE BT ME RS AERE

increase registered capital or use for collective welfare of employees. ZERBREA o
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e M RRME

21 Revenue

21

The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, marketing
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other electronic
products and property holding. Revenues recognised during the year are

L/ ON

AEBIZEBRRE  BE HERHKEEE
BER RUOLEGEFERRSENE - F
MR ZWALT

as follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Sales of merchandise BEmiEE 1,402,061 1,202,685
Handling income RIBIA 9,532 23,256
Management fees EIRE 175 154
Rental income e WA 27 26
1,411,795 1,226,121
22 Other gains/(losses) — net 22 Hiblhz (E58) — 8
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fair value gains on derivative financial PTEeMITAZAYE
instruments U 25 - 3,870
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value BAFEFABERN
through profit or loss MBEEz A TEER (36) (49)
Fair value gains on investment property wEME 2 ATE
(Note 7) Wk (FiIRET) 200 150
Net losses on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEENKEE
financial assets ) F= Ve = (20)
Net losses on disposal of financial assets at fair HEZRAFETABZA
value through profit or loss WS EE 2 BEFEHR = (19)
Net gains on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERERE
equipment W F R 770 1
Net realised losses from derivative financial PTESRMIAEZEETR
instruments EEFE = (3,529)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) PE W Wz (598 ) F 58 7,112 (16,377)
8,046 (15,973)
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e EHRRME
23 Operating profit 23 K& RF
Operating profit is stated after charging the following: RN EHBRTHEIA
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Auditor's remuneration =R BN & 1,686 1,626
Amortisation of land use rights + i PR RE 2 Y 159 161
Cost of inventories (Note) TFERARKEE) 1,147,959 965,169
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment YW BEMREZTE 30,996 30,671
Operating lease rental of premises ME 2 KEMOEE 8,596 7,393
Provision for inventory obsolescence RERE 6,133 13,208
Provision for legal costs (Note 16) AR B RAEE(ME6) 6,219 -
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) BESH(BEEENS)
(Note 28) (P 5E28) 397,821 340,172
Note:  Costs of inventories included but not limited to costs of materials, M FERKABREETBERRARERRKE . o

subcontracting charges, staff costs (refer to Note 28) and manufacturing

overheads.

24 Finance income — net

24 MEWRA - FH

A EEXH(RWE28)REEER -

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest income from RETZH B WA

— available-for-sale financial assets — A REEYHEE = 184

— financial assets at FVOCI —RAFEFAHMBEEWZERN
B EE 185 =
— bank deposits —RITFHK 4,411 3,106
Interest expense FEZH (24) (12)
4,572 3,278

3 2018/2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUHERKRMEE

25 IBHRXH

25 Income tax expenses

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March 2035.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for the year. The Group's subsidiaries in China are subject
to the China Corporate Income Tax at a rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on
estimated assessable profits.

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Withholding taxes are
payable on dividends distributed/to be distributed by those subsidiaries
established in China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

AARRHAREREEER2035F3A AL

EAENESHBBORBEARESEEIRE
E%Zﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬂ%%S%QM81ﬁ%)
REAE - REERF R KB AR ERGR
%m@ﬂuﬁ%umsinMK% Lalle!
m%ﬁﬁ S o

BEBEFE L BRPBERIIMNEEESTRRE
R BIR S 2 SN 1R B 1 FE R AR B U1 0% T8
FR o 5% F B2008F1 A1 8 AW EAR
200712 A31HEFTES 2 &BF o fwrh B 85
INEEEmMBREER 2B EBERBERK
2 A RBEENR RGN - Bt - A%E
A ZE R B S 2 I B A Bl 56200841 A1
BREEZAFMAIK T 5k KREHZ

TEFRL

e 2 mRER AR THIA SRR

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current income tax B HIFREH

— Current tax on profits for the year —FRRN B HTHIE 20,169 14,887
— Over-provision in prior years — BT (60) (101)
— Withholding tax on dividends — R EFENH - 334
20,109 15,120

Deferred income tax (credit)/charge EIEFTSR (R ), S i
(Note 17) (B&E17) (489) 190
19,620 15,310

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 1 46 Annual Report 2018/2019



R T
: I i ! m“wlu....

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBERKRMEE

25 FRBMZ )

REB BT S HATE M 2 TR BB AN R 7B
B REFHE 2 EREE2ERNET -

25 Income tax expenses (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

country of the Company as follows:

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit before income tax MRS H A& A 88,588 69,589
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% ?ﬁzﬁ% <16.5% (2018 : 16.5%)

(2018: 16.5%) TE 14,452 11,482
Effect of different taxation rates in China R BETRBE & (341) (2,335)
Income not subject to taxation BAS 2 WA (949) (1,820)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purpose A BLERFR M H0BR 2 2 4,836 1,828
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses FRATFERERZBBER (1,956) (282)
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2 BEE1E 690 4,458
Over-provision in prior years TEBFIRE (60) (101)
Withholding tax on dividends SRRl 361 334
Others HAith 2,587 1,746

19,620 15,310
26 Dividends 26 B2
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim dividend paid of HK4.0 cents BT AR AR B S A R AR

(2018: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share 4.07511 (2018 : 4.0781L) 16,849 16,824
Proposed final dividend of HK5.0 cents BEEAARESRE AR

(2018: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share 5.07%8 11 (2018 : 5.0711l) 21,292 21,053

38,141 37,877

At a meeting held on 19 June 2019, the Board of Directors recommended
a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share amounting to a total
of HK$21,292,000. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable in these consolidated financial statements, and will be reflected
as appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 March 2020.

3 2018/2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HRE B REK MR

27 Earnings per share 27 BREF
Basic BN
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable BREARBANTDAEBARRREREAZ R
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of FIBRAF AR EITEBERZ INETHEGTE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2019 2018
Profit attributable to equity holders of the BEBANRREFEEA
Company (HK$'000) A (FAET) 40,490 30,518
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITERRZ
in issue (in thousands) nEFEEE(FRE) 422,566 420,459
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREEARZEF(BL) 9.6 7.3
Diluted BE
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted BRESERT DRBARZEITEINSER 2 M
average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of T HEIRBRAA G E# S T RRE EiRst
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category of HoARAAE—REE#HELER - NER
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, RE o BLEEARAE S - TARIR M RTT SRR ARE P
a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have MREE, EEEBRETHENEEITRAT
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market B(EEAEARARO 2 FHABETE)KEZ
price of the Company's shares) based on the monetary value of the RDEE - EXEE2RMHER SRR ERE
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of BATERBEIT 2 ROEBEEE -
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
2019 2018
Profit attributable to equity holders of the BEBANRREREA
Company (HK$'000) 2 (FHTT) 40,490 30,518
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITERRZ
in issue (in thousands) nEEEE(FRE) 422,566 420,459
Adjustment for potential dilutive effect in FLEARITEERE
respect of outstanding share options BIEEEE D
(in thousands) ZAE(TRR) 1,515 1,574
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ stESREERET 2
diluted earnings per share (in thousands) TR I IS (T %) 424,081 422,033
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SRREERF CBIl) 9.5 7.2
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28 Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR

28 EEXH(BREESHE)

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Wages and salaries ITERF® 354,979 302,162
Other staff benefits HibB TaA 15,124 13,916
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BRkeH—F5
(Note 32) ka8 (P EE32) 27,718 24,094
397,821 340,172
(a) Five highest paid individuals (@) EEBEFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the & W$%£%%%%ij\i@%5%
Group for the year include three (2018: three) directors whose (2018 =ZR)EF - WEZMEERMW
= - AN ® N
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 29. The AL29FT R Z S HTIRER © FARMEER T A
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2018: two) individuals (2018 : ME)ALTZMSIT -
during the year are as follows.
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Wages and salaries TEKF® 5,085 4,774
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BAREE —F5E
(Note 32) HRRETEI (F7E32) 24 24
5,109 4,798

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individuals fell within the
following bands:

BRATZMENTRTHEEA

Number of individuals

A
2019 2018
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) e EEGET)
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0005% 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017%8 7t £ 3,000,0007% 7T 1 =
£ 20182019 149 s+smzaRsRAT
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29 Benefits and interests of directors 29 EEEARER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM £
Salary,

allowances Pension

and benefits Discretionary costs and
Name of Directors Fees in kind bonuses share options Total

A 4.1 RS ZH
s BE REVERN BETEA RERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019%3831H

LEE

Executive Directors WTES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 1BE

(Chief Executive Officer) (TTHBH) - 2,369 970 3 3,342
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 1 4 - 2,304 970 3 3,277
Chow Man Yan, Michael AX{E - 2,304 970 3 3,277
Yuen Chi King, Wyman FF - 1,612 499 21 2,132
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben 1B R - 1,807 499 21 2,327
Chow Lai Fung ERER - 1,612 499 21 2,132
Independent non-executive Directors BV IFHITES
Chung Chi Ping, Roy EET 250 - - - 250
Che Wai Hang, Allen BEE 250 - - - 250
Lee Yiu Pun 2RI, 250 - - - 250
For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z2018%3831H

LEE

Executive Directors BITES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny B

(Chief Executive Officer) (1THBE) = 2,257 689 3 2,949
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 1 4 - 2,194 689 3 2,886
Chow Man Yan, Michael AX{E - 2,194 689 3 2,886
Yuen Chi King, Wyman TR - 1,534 355 21 1,910
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben 1B R - 1,729 355 21 2,105
Chow Lai Fung ERER - 1,534 355 21 1,910
Independent non-executive Directors B I TES
Chung Chi Ping, Roy EEF 250 - - - 250
Che Wai Hang, Allen BEE 250 - - - 250
Lee Yiu Pun 2RI, 250 - - - 250
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29 Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking.

(i)  No remuneration has been paid by the Group to the Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office during the current and prior years. There was no
arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the current and prior years.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2018: Nil).
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REUBERKRMEE

29 EEEFNRERE)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEME )
P i

i) BMEMALTREZZN(THARAAR
HIEB AR PR 4IRS B 15 ok R A< 9 B

S
E °

(i) AEEREMLBEFERENEERES
NS - AERTEIMAEMAREE
Rz EZBXAMBMAEZHE - RE
AkBEFEMEETNRLARENE
B E 2 25 -

ESEAREARRLERER

FA - HEEREWEIEEEEBUEEK
BRI I EREF (2018 : &) ©

BRREHESREAF=FRH2KE

HE2019F3A31HIEFE  ARAIHE
MREEEERERTIMAE=Z AT HKRE
(2018 : 4) o

ERLES SR iEREEE
MASHAZER  EERREMR
22 &R

BEEHAEE - siEZIERARE R EE
BERAIDAZER EEFRHMXR S
ZHE(2018 : &) o

EERNRG  ZHAEHNHZEX
i

RERRFREFER  LEFEAKE
EBMARBMEREF - AARRES
REP(TRBERERER)BEEEAER L
BEARS  RERAHI(2018 &) o

ELTEEXEREBRAE
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30 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 30 ZEHREHRERKEE

(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated (a) AEERAEKEXKFAE2REZ
from operations: HER -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit for the year REE 5 A 68,968 54,279
Adjustments for: AT SIBEL L
— Amortisation of land use rights — b R 2 g 159 161
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  —¥% - ENREZITE 30,996 30,671
- Finance income — net —RERA—F5E (4,572) (3,278)
— Income tax expenses —FEM = 19,620 15,310
— Fair value gains on derivative financial —PTEERIE
instruments N ERE = (3,870)
— Fair value losses on financial assets at fair —RATERABRD
value through profit or loss WisEE A TERRE 36 49
— Fair value gains on investment property —REWELTFEZRE (200) (150)
— Net losses on disposal of available-for-sale —HEHREENBEE
financial assets ZEEFE = 20
— Net losses on disposal of financial assets at —HERATE AERR
fair value through profit or loss WBEE BB FE - 19
— Net gains on disposal of property, plant and —HEWE  BEIREZ
equipment a5 58 (770) 0
— Provision for inventory obsolescence —REEE 6,133 13,208
— Provision/(reversal of provision) for — FEWS ORI EREE
impairment of trade receivables ([E14) 871 (2,105)
— Exchange differences —[E N =58 (12,175) 21,140
109,066 125,453
Changes in working capital: EEESEE -
— Inventories —FE (97,560) (75,253)
— Trade receivables —ERER (32,194) (10,224)
— Other receivables — H b FEUGRIE (10,997) (490)
— Trade payables —ENER (22,310) (5,339)
— Contract liabilities, accruals and other —aHaE  EErERNKEM
payables FES 08 29,457 14,899
Cash (used in)/generated from operations R (R), /e 2RE (24,538) 49,046
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30 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 30 ZEHRERERK T (&)

(Continued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing activities during the (b) FAMETEEE D :
year:
Share capital and share premium
IR R R 435 8
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4R1H 155,633 154,515
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options E 171 B IR AE T 21T I (D 5,249 885
Employee share option scheme: REBRETE
— Exercise of share options — TR AR 1,344 233
At 31 March M3A31H 162,226 155,633
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as MEEBMEEZBEHROT ¢
follows:
Dividend payable
BARE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4A1H - -
Dividends declared EEIRRE 57,671 65,842
Cash flows Rehse (57,671) (65,842)
At 31 March M3A31H = =

£ 20182019 153 m+tsmgnRsmAd
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31 Commitments 31 &¥E
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
The Group had the following authorised and contracted capital REBEZERERDITNEREENT ¢

commitments:

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

Acquisition of machinery and equipment B R B8 2,828 1,882

(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) REFHERIE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under REERBZENA G LERERR
various non-cancellable operating leases as follows: REMNZEESEBAOT

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

Not later than one year TBiE1F 8,597 6,663

Later than one year and not later than five years Bi&1 {8 NBiB5F 11,754 11,079

20,351 17,742
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32 Pension obligations

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. The assets of
the fund are held separately from those of the Group and are managed by
independent professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer's and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month, as appropriate,
as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance, and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in China, the Group contributes
to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in China. The
employees contribute up to 8% of their basic salaries, while the Group
contributes to retirement plans approximately at 13% to 20% of the
basic salaries of its employees in China, and has no further obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The
state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

REUBERKRMEE
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33 Related party transactions 33 MEALRS
The Company's directors consider there is no ultimate holding company 2019 K2018F3 8318 * ARAEER AL
as at 31 March 2019 and 2018. BEIERAT] -
(a) The following significant transactions were carried out () AEEEEEALTZEARZNOT :
with related parties:
2019 2018
Name of related party/nature of transaction BIEALTZEB XEMHE HK$'000 HK$'000
The Bright Printing Press and Paper Products St At = EN R AR o R
Limited (i) BRAFN)
- Sales of merchandise to the Group —MAEBEEESE R 267 302
— Management fees paid/payable to the Group -8B/ ENAER
ZERER 19 22
— Handling fees paid/payable to the Group -8/ EANAEE
BIEE - 12
First Success Technology Limited (i) tERHE A R A F()
— Rental expense paid/payable by the Group —AEBE
= 1,077 1,075
— Management fees paid/payable to the Group —B/ENAER
ZERER 156 132
Note: MisE
(i) Both companies are wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. () ZMEARHALRRAEFHEML
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, directors of the A RMARERBXCEEREHES -
Company.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above related party RAREERR  LHBAEALTRS IR
transactions were conducted in the usual course of business of REE —REBBEFHET - WIREH W
the Group and in accordance with terms mutually agreed by the TE 2 RFETT o
respective parties.
(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEBASHM
Key management personnel are the Company's executive directors. FEFBABRARRMITES - FEE
Details of compensation of key management personnel are disclosed BAB 2 HF R BRI 29

in Note 29 to the financial statements.
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34 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 34 KXAREEEBRREHESTH
Company

(a) XRAEERER

(a) Balance sheet of the Company

As at 31 March

MA3A31H
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARZIEE 142,468 142,468
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables e IR 347 259
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGRS 206,476 205,129
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEY 992 1,036
Total current assets MBEERE 207,815 206,424
Current liabilities mEAaE
Accruals and other payables FET & & E b fE S FAE 11,206 5,120
Current income tax liabilities EHFSHas 242 a4
Total current liabilities mBBERE 11,448 5,164
_Netcurrentassets mBEEFE 196,367 201,260
Net assets BEFE 338,835 343,728
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable to the HBARNRRERBAZ
Company's equity holders [ B A
Share capital f& A 42,584 42,107
Other reserves Hih 261,120 256,393
Retained earnings 1R BB & A 35,131 45,228
Total equity HEmaEt 338,835 343,728

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 19 June 2019 and was signed on its behalf.

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY

YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON

Chairman Joint Deputy Chairman
FE B L
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34 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 34 ZAFEEEBERRFEEEDH 2
Company (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ADTRERE
Share  Contributed Share option Retained
premium surplus (i) reserve earnings Total
BRE
BROEE  BHREL) & REBEF @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2017 M2017F481A8 112,489 138,800 10,757 34,192 296,238
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNEEE
income for the year Wi s = - - 50,821 50,821
Employee share option scheme: EERRESE:
— Lapse of share options —REIRRER = = (6,457) 6,457 =
— Proceeds from shares issued — 1T REAR
upon exercise of share MmETRR
options Pzt 804 - - - 804
— Exercise of share options —{TfRREARE 233 = (233) = =
Dividends paid EfRE - - - (46,242) (46,242)
At 31 March 2018 2018434310 113,526 138,800 4,067 45,228 301,621
Profit and total comprehensive FRREFNREE
income for the year W 4as8 - - - 27,929 27,929
Employee share option scheme: ESEET 2
— Lapse of share options — IR = = (45) 45 -
— Proceeds from shares issued — TR iERE
upon exercise of share [iE:81:1%)
options ZFTS A 4,772 = = = 4,772
— Exercise of share options — TR iERE 1,344 - (1,344) - -
Dividends paid BAKRE - - - (38,071) (38,071)
At 31 March 2019 R2019%F3A31H 119,642 138,800 2,678 35,131 296,251
Note: Pt 5
() Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal () BHBRAMEARAMBETEEREE

EAAR1R2000F3 A AN K B E A HE TR
KE—EHBAREEFEZESE -

value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset
value of a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant
to the Group’s reorganisation in March 2000.
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Corporate Information
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Head office and principal place of business

16th Floor, Tower 1

Grand Central Plaza

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Bermuda principal share registrar and transfer office

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

Solicitors

Chiu & Partners

40th Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Hong Kong

Principal banker

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Public relations consultant

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
Unit A, 29/F., Admiralty Centre |
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
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